
1

Tel: +27 (0) 11 403 7182. Fax: +27 (0) 11 403 7188
E-mail: cgeinfo@cge.org.za

Website:http://www.cge.org.za

ISBN: 978-1-920308-26-1
Cover Design: Commission For Gender Equality Communications Unit

Research: Commission For Gender Equality
Design and Typesetting: C&R Business Systems (PTY) Ltd.

Editing: Commission For Gender Equality

Copyright: 2010 Commission for Gender Equality. All rights reserved. No part of this publica -
tion may be reproduced, photocopied or transmitted in any form, nor any part of the report
be distributed for profit-making purposes, without prior written consent of the Commission for
Gender Equality.

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010



2

CONTENTS

FOREWORD FROM THE CHAIRPERSON 5
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW 7
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 9
COMMITTEES OF THE CGE 9

1. GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE COMMISSION FOR GENDER EQUALITY 11
1.1  VISION AND MISSION 11
1.2  LEGISLATIVE MANDATE 11
1.3  PRIMARY OBJECTIVES 12
1.4  ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE 13

2. OVERVIEW OF SERVICE DELIVERY 14
2.1  RELEVANCIES AND KEY FOCAL POINTS OF BILLS AND MATTERS

SUBMITTED TO PARLIAMENT AND LEGISLATURES 14
2.2 OFFICIAL VISITS ABROAD INCLUDING DATES AND PURPOSE 17
2.3 OVERVIEW OF SERVICE DELIVERY FOR 2009/10 17
2.3.1 REVIEW OF LEGAL DEPARTMENT SERVICE DELIVERY 17
2.3.2 REVIEW OF PUBLIC EDUCATION AND INFORMATION SERVICE DELIVERY 17
2.3.3 REVIEW OF RESEARCH AND POLICY SERVICE DELIVERY 18
2.3.3.1  MONITORING AND EVALUATION 18
2.3.4 REVIEW OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 18

3. HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT REPORT 19
3.1  PERSONNEL EXPENDITURE 19
3.1.1 PERSONNEL COSTS BY SALARY BAND 19
3.1.2 SALARIES, OVERTIME, HOME OWNER’S ALLOWANCES AND MEDICAL

ASSISTANCE BY PROGRAMME    19
3.2     JOB EVALUATION    20
3.3     PERFORMANCE RELATED REWARDS    20
3.4     FOREIGN WORKERS    20
3.5     LEAVE UTILISATION    20
3.5.1     SICK LEAVE    20
3.5.2     ANNUAL LEAVE    21
3.5.3     LEAVE PAYOUTS    21
3.6    EMPLOYMENT CHANGES    21
3.6.1   ANNUAL TURNOVER RATES BY SALARY BAND    21
3.6.2   ANNUAL TURNOVER RATES BY CRITICAL OCCUPATION 22
3.6.3 REASONS NOMINATED FOR STAFF LEAVING DEPARTMENTS 22
3.7 EMPLOYMENT EQUITY 22
3.7.1 TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES (INCLUDING EMPLOYEES WITH DISABILITIES)

IN EACH OF THE FOLLOWING OCCUPATIONAL CATEGORIES AT 31 MARCH 2010 22
3.8 EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES BY PROGRAMME AT 31 MARCH 2010 23

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010



3

3.9 RECRUITMENT 24
3.10 PROMOTIONS 24
3.11 TERMINATIONS 24
3.12 DISCIPLINARY MATTERS 25
3.12.1   DISCIPLINARY ACTION TAKEN 25
3.13 SKILLS DEVELOPMENT 25

4. PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE       26
4.1      PROGRAMME: Office of the Commissioners       26
4.1.1     OVERVIEW       26
4.1.2     PURPOSE       26
4.1.3     PRIMARY OBJECTIVES       26
4.1.4     SERVICE DELIVERY ACHIEVEMENTS       27
4.2.     PROGRAMME: Internal Audit       33
4.2.1. OVERVIEW       33
4.2.2     THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL       33
4.2.3     INTERNAL AUDIT       34
4.3      OFFICE OF THE CHIEF OPERATIONS OFFICER       34
4.3.1     OVERVIEW       34
4.3.2     SERVICE DELIVERY ACHIEVEMENTS       34
4.4      PROGRAMME: Legal       36
4.4.1     OVERVIEW       36
4.4.2     PURPOSE       36
4.4.3     PRIMARY OBJECTIVES        36
4.4.4     SERVICE DELIVERY ACHIEVEMENTS        36
4.4.4.1          COMPLAINTS MANAGEMENT        36
4.4.4.2          LITIGATION        38
4.4.4.3          COURT MONITORING        38
4.4.4.5          PUBLIC HEARINGS        38
4.4.5     SERVICE DELIVERY REPORTING FOR 2009/10        38
4.4.6      PARLIAMENTARY OFFICER        38
4.4.6.1          OVERVIEW        47
4.4.6.2          SERVICE DELIVERY ACHIEVEMENTS        48
4.5       PROGRAMME: Public Education and Information        49
4.5.1      OVERVIEW        49
4.5.2      PURPOSE        49
4.5.3     PRIMARY OBJECTIVES       50
4.5.4     SERVICE DELIVERY ACHIEVEMENTS       50
4.5.4.1        SEMINARS AND EVENTS       50
4.5.4.2        TABULAR REPRESENTATION OF PROGRESS ON PERFORMANCE PER PROVINCE     53
4.5.4.3        SERVICE DELIVERY REPORTING FOR 2009/10    53
4.6    PROGRAMME: Research and Policy   64
4.6.1  OVERVIEW  64
4.6.2 PRIMARY OBJECTIVES 64
4.6.3 SERVICE DELIVERY ACHIEVEMENTS 65

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010



4

4.6.4 REVIEW OF RESEARCH AND POLICY SERVICE DELIVERY 68
4.6.5 SERVICE DELIVERY REPORTING FOR 2009/10 69
4.7 PROGRAMME: Information Technology  72
4.7.1 OVERVIEW  72
4.7.2 PURPOSE  72
4.7.3 PRIMARY OBJECTIVES  72
4.7.4 SERVICE DELIVERY ACHIEVEMENTS  72
4.8 PROGRAMME: Communications  74
4.8.1 OVERVIEW  74
4.8.2 PURPOSE  74
4.8.3 PRIMARY OBJECTIVES  74
4.8.4 SERVICE DELIVERY ACHIEVEMENTS  75
4.9 PROGRAMME: Finance and Administration 79
4.9.1 OVERVIEW OF PERFORMANCE  79
4.9.1.1 Composition of expenditure  80
4.9.1.2    Expenditure by location  81
4.9.1.3 Expenditure by economic classification and main program 81
4.9.1.4 Commissioners: Support and Governance 82
4.9.1.5 Goods and Services - detailed lines of expenditure 84
4.9.2   Financial position  84
4.9.3 RISK MANAGEMENT

5. FINANCIALS
5.1  REPORT FROM THE AUDITOR-GENERAL 89
5.2  GENERAL INFORMATION 96
5.3  ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 97
5.4  STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 98
5.5  STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 99
5.6  STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 100
5.7  CASH FLOW STATEMENT 101
5.8  ACCOUNTING POLICIES 102
5.9  NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 116-130

Glossary of Acronyms and Abbreviations

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010



5

FOREWORD FROM THE CHAIRPERSON

Mfanozelwe Shozi
Deputy Chairperson (Acting Chairperson)

It is a great pleasure to present to the citizens of the
Republic of South Africa, the Commission for Gender
Equality Annual Report for the 2009/10 financial year.

First of all, I would wish to emphasise that the Commis -
sion for Gender Equality (CGE) remains committed to
strengthening and deepening the constitutional
democracy in South Africa by implementing its remit in
its designated areas of strategic influence and resultant
activity.

Secondly, the Commission, through its staff and commis -
sioners, is dedicated to its vision: that is , to contribute to
and impact positively on the SA population. In summary,
we aim to work towards establishing a society free from
all forms of gender oppression and inequality.

This Annual Report will attest and provide information on
the Commission and its overall mandate to ensure that
gender equality in South Africa is integrated, developed
and attained for the protection and enhancement of
all its citizens.

A brief recap of the Commission’s past performance:
In the 2007/08 and 2008/09 financial years, the reports issued by the Auditor -General of South Africa raised
a plethora of shortcomings in the following domains within the Commission: the control environment, the
risk environment, information and communication and monitoring. Regrettably, high staff turnover, organ -
isational instability and vacancy rates at senior management level contributed to this picture.

In the current financial year, during the months of April and May 2010, the Commission has been called by
the Standing Committee on Public Accounts (SCOPA) to account on the financial state of the Institution ,
and , the SA Government’s Portfolio Committee on Women, Children, Youth and Persons with Disabilities to
account on the Institution’s performance and utilisation of approved budgets.

It is known that the two committees were dissatisfied that the Commission failed to submit its previous
annual reports , timeously. The two committees were also displeased that the Commission received
disclaimers for the audited financial statements for both the 2007/08 and 2008/09 financial years.

I am pleased to report on behalf of commissioners and staff that we are constantly working towards
meeting our constitutional mandate and corresponding obligations. A stable working environment has
been created together with a congenial atmosphere amongst commissioners and staff. Most importantly,
commissioners and staff have worked tirelessly to ensure that the 2009/10 and 2010/11 strategic plans, the
Plan of Action and budgets are approved to specified deadlines.

The Commission for Gender Equality has tabled the following reports so that the South Africa public is
informed about the work of the Commission: -
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• Report of the Commission for Gender Equality (CGE) on the South Africa Gender Barometer Project
(2009);

• Report of the Commission for Gender Equality on the National Dialogue on Elections (2009);
• Research Report of the Commission for Gender Equality on the Victims’ Charter (2009); and
• Report of the Commission for Gender Equality (CGE) on the National Monitoring of the General

Election (2009).

In the next financial year, the Commission will also table its first report to the Convention on the Elimination
of all forms of Discrimination Against Women (CEDAW) Committee on South Africa’s implementation of
CEDAW, 1998-2008.

The Commission has also finalised the 2010 Commission on the Status of Women (CSW) Report where the
Commission participated in the proceedings and hosted a seminar on Gender Equality and Harmful
Traditional Practices .

The Commission is pleased to have progressed from the two disclaimers to a qualified audit opinion.
Although this audit opinion is not the preferred outcome, the Commission is engaging vigorously in
correcting outstanding audit issues.

The key challenges that a chapter nine institution, specifically the Commission for Gender Equality faces
are budgetary constraints, interface relationship with government department whilst retaining independ -
ence as is required by the Constitution, the ability and willingness to engage Departments in line with our
monitoring and evaluation role. We are hoping that as the legislative and regulatory environment evolves,
these challenges will be resolved to ensure that the Commission operates perfectly in accordance with
what is envisaged in section 181 and 187 of the Constitution of the Republic.

As acting chairperson, in conclusion I would like to convey my thanks to the offices of the Presidency,
the Speaker and the Deputy Speaker, the Ministry for Women, Children and Persons with Disability, the
Auditor-General, the Portfolio Committee for Women, Children, Youth and People with Disabilities , and ,
SCOPA for their continued support of the Commission.

And finally, may I express my sincere appreciation to the Commissioners and Secretariat for ensuring that
the Commission delivers on its mandate, at times, under difficult circumstances. I can assure South Africans
that the office of the Commission is both united in its undertaking and is working cohesively to deliver on
its objectives. This Report is a testimony to that endeavour.

Mfanozelwe Shozi
Acting Chairperson - Commission for Gender Equality
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW

Keketso Maema
Chief Executive Officer

It is yet another year gone by and a moment of
reflection  .

The position the Commission occupies in the socio-legal
environment and society at large will undoubdtedly
attract public interest on issues ranging from its internal
matters to the broader gender inequality dimensions.
The financial year that ended 31 March 2010 may be
seen as a turning point for the Commission’s fortunes.

In the reporting period, the Commission had to account
to SA citizens for the public funds utilised for the previous
financial years, as is more fully elaborated in the 2007/08
and 2008/09 Annual Reports.

Also under account: A number of areas of non-compli -
ance with the regulatory requirements, more especially
the Public Finance  Management Act (PFMA) and
related laws and regulations. This had potential serious
consequences, however, the Commission resolved to
tackle the endemic weaknesses and adopt modes of
operation that befit an institution charged to protect the
constitutional democracy in South Africa.

During the year under review, we have seen consolidation and stability in areas of governance, lower
echelon of staffing and financial management against the situation that prevailed in the two preceding
financial years.

We are yet to fill all the critical vacant positions for senior managers; we hope to fulfil this in the ensuing
financial year. Our turnaround strategy is geared to remedy all organisational and operational weaknesses
that detract from an ideal Constitutional Institution. To underpin our resolve, milestones were set, including
fast-track deliverables that will culminate in an improved regularity audit opinion. In this regard, we can
proudly record a quick win in that a qualified audit opinion was expressed by the office of Auditor-General
of South Africa on the Annual Financial Statement for the year ending 31 March 2010. This salutes our
efforts in realising a medium term goal of a clean audit report.

In the environment which the Commission operates, there are two main immutable forces that exert
unrelenting demand to perform. The Constitution of South Africa and the CGE Act, creates a positive
obligation on the Commission to be at the centre in the nation’s drive to eradicate of all forms of gender
discrimination and inequality. This is the primary demand the organization’s focus has rightfully been during
the year under review. The second such force is the legal compliance requirement on all institutions
subjects to the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and related legislation. In fact, compliance to
these laws cannot be seen as being in paradox to the primary mandate, but complimentary to ensure that
the service delivery objectives are met in an efficient, effective and economical manner. It is against this
background that in this report, we reflect on some millstones we achieved in the execution of our
Constitutional mandate whilst also shedding some light on the state of affairs in the arena of compliance
to the governing regulations.
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Before I report on the activities for the current period, let me also reflect on the past and interventions
we took to address some of the deficiencies. The recent past was characterised by tensions within the
institution, high staff turnover , weak internal control and management systems resulting into spending of
public funds in contravention of the PFMA. This state of affairs naturally culminated into two disclaimed
opinion by the AGSA on the Annual Financial statements of the organization for the 2007-8 and 2008-9
financial years. As the institution, we sought to rectify the situation, by addressing the vacancy rate,
improving the control environment and putting measures in place to stem non-adherence to the prescripts
of the law.

In pursuit of the protection and promotion of gender equality in the broader sense of the word, the
Commission carried out a substantial amount of work, ranging from addressing complains from those
aggrieved of prejudice and discrimination; conducting research on gender topical issues; educating and
raising public awareness on gender equality rights and many more activities that assist the society to realize
the full rights and freedoms as is guaranteed by our Constitution. In this report, we report on how we
performed against the pre-determined objectives that were made at the beginning of the financial year.
I think we have met our key objectives and on some areas even exceeded expectations. The perform -
ance information is primarily reported under the programmatic departments, namely; Legal, Research
& Policy Analysis and Public Education & Information (PEI).

The Annual Financial statements tabled with this report highlights areas where moneys were irregularly
utilized, contravening the provisions of the PFMA. These are instances where structural legacies such as lack
of a formal supply chain management unit or competence therein results in inadequate procurement
practices. The shortcomings are been addressed and regularisation with the relevant Treasury shall be
commenced and effected in the New Year. There have also been two instances where financial losses
were identified by management and corrective actions immediately taken to ensure the recovery
of these funds. Although there have been impairment of debtors during the year under review, the
Commission is not deterred from collecting from its debtors and has already commenced with recovery
on all instances identified.

In the new year, our focus will be an adjustment of our strategic thrust, to ensure that all that we do is
centrally based on our Constitutional mandate, whilst also ensuring that at management level, all the
systems, processes, procedures are followed according to the law, that staff development and growth is
taken to a higher level, that cohesion of purpose is achieved across the institution. This will take obliteration
of what does not work at the moment and amelioration on the good that we are doing with a view to
catapult the organization to higher level of performance. Our Turnaround strategy and commitment by
all at the institution forms the basis of departure to the desired future.

Ms Keketso Maema
Acting Chief Executive Officer
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2010

Audit Committee members and attendance

The audit committee for the year under review was comprised of three external members and two internal
members, the audit committee structure consist of members listed below. The Audit Committee is required
to meet four times a year as per its approved terms of reference. During the current year 7 meetings were
held by the Committee .

An external member; Mr Paul Slack resigned as a member of the committee and was replaced by Mr
Aluwani Munyamela. The Chairperson of the Committee also resigned in March 2010 and at the time of
this report, a process of recruiting a suitable candidate was unfolding.

Name of Member Designation Number of meetings attended.
Mr David Lefutso Chairperson (External)  7
Mr Paul Slack Member (External)  3
Ms Rael Hamisi Member (External) 6
Mr Aluwani Munyamela Member (External) 1
Commissioner Ndileka Loyilane Member (Internal) 7
Commissioner Janine Hicks Member (Internal) 3

Audit committee responsibility

We report that we have adopted appropriate formal terms of reference in our charter in line with the re -
quirements of Section 38 (1) (a) of the Public Finance Management Act No.1 of 1999 and Treasury Regu -
lation 3.1. We further report that we conducted our affairs in compliance with the charter.

The effectiveness of internal control

The system of internal control was not entirely effective for the year under review. During the year under
review several deficiencies in the system of internal control were reported by the internal auditors and the
Auditor-General South Africa.
In certain instances the matters reported previously have been fully and satisfactorily addressed.

Internal Audit

All audit projects were completed and finalized as per operational plan. No projects were rolled over to
the next financial year. We are advised that audit findings were, however, communicated to management
through draft reports. The draft audit reports have since been finalized and we are satisfied that the internal
audit function is operating effectively and that it has addressed the risks pertinent to the department in its
audits in accordance with its operational plan.

Risk management

Management is responsible for proactively identifying, evaluating, and managing and monitoring all sig -
nificant risks faced by the Commission. The Commission is yet to develop comprehensive risk management
policies with a view to safeguarding the Commission’s staff, assets, corporate credibility and reputation.

Auditor-General South Africa
We have met with the Auditor –General South Africa to ensure that there are no unresolved issues.
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Evaluation of Financial Statements
We have:

• Reviewed and discussed the audited annual financial statements to be included in the annual report
with the Auditor-General South Africa and the Accounting Officer.

• Reviewed the Auditor-General South Africa’s management letter and management’s response
thereto;

• Reviewed the department’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions;
• Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

We concur and accept the conclusions of the Auditor General South Africa’s report on the annual
financial statements and are of the opinion that the audited annual financial statements should be
accepted read together with the report of the Auditor General South Africa.

__________________________________________
Chairperson of the Audit Committee

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Commission:

The Commission comprises of 1 2 Commissioners who have been appointed by Parliament as outlined in
the CGE Act (1996). The Chairperson of the Commission is appointed by the president and is one of the
12 Commissioners. The Deputy Chairperson is appointed internally by the plenary of commissioners.
Currently the commission has nine (9) active commissioners. The Deputy Chairperson has been acting as
the chairperson of the Commission since 3 August 2009.

The Secretariat consists of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and staff.

The plenary of commissioners appoint the CEO who in turn appoints staff to support the functioning of the
Commission. The Commission has three programmatic departments, namely, Legal, Research , and ,
Public Education and Information. Each department has officers who are responsible to roll–out the
programmes of the Commission. The Officers are based in the provinces which are managed by Provincial
Coordinators.

Plenary Sessions:

The Commissioners attended a plenary session once a quarter to ascertain progress with regard to the
strategic objectives as outlined in the Strategic Plan 2008-2013.

The objective for the plenary sittings is to exercise the Commissioners’ fiduciary responsibilities as well as their
overseeing role of the Commission. Commissioners regularly assess and ensure that policies and practices
are consistent with the mandate of the Commission. In a quest to achieve its mandate, the Commission
bases its strategic framework on six key themes, namely:

• Gender and Poverty;
• Gender-Based Violence;
• Gender, Democracy and Good Governance;
• Gender, Culture, Religion and Traditional Practices;
• Gender and HIV and AIDS; and
• National Gender Machinery.

The service delivery programmes of the Commission are rendered through three core line functions:
• Public Education and Information;
• Legal Services; and
• Policy and Research.

These departments are supported by Finance and Administration, Human Resources, Information
Technology and Communications.

Corporate Governance Training:

In upholding sound corporate governance activity in 2009/10, the commissioners attended a corporate
governance workshop tailored to the efforts by and to enhance the overall efficiencies of the
Commission.

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010
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COMMITTEES OF THE CGE

Thematic Committees

Six committees in all, are as follows:

• Gender and Poverty Committee: led by Commissioner Yvette Abrahams
• Gender-Based Violence: led by Commissioner Mfanozelwe Shozi
• Gender, Democracy and Good Governance: led by Commissioner Janine Hicks
• Gender, Culture, Religion and Tradition: led by Commissioner Rosieda Shabodien
• Gender and HIV and AIDS: led by Commissioner Ndileka Loyilane
• National Gender Machinery: led by Commissioner Boogie Khutsoane

These committees are guided by each Thematic Committee’s Terms of Reference developed by the lead
commissioner of the theme. These committees provide strategic guidance and support to the programme
work of the Commission .

Standing Committees

Within the Commission are:
• Management Committee: led by Chief Executive Officer
• Finance Committee: led by Commissioner Mfanozelwe Shozi
• Human Resources Committee: led by Vernet Napo
• Information Technology and Communications Committee: led by Commissioner Kenosi Meruti
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE COMMISSION FOR GENDER EQUALITY

1.1 VISION AND MISSION

OUR VISION

A society free from all forms of gender oppression and inequality .

OUR MISSION

To promote, protect, monitor and evaluate gender equality through undertaking research, public
education, policy development, legislative initiatives, effective monitoring and litigation.

1.2 LEGISLATIVE MANDATE

The Commission for Gender Equality (CGE) is an independent statutory body established in terms of Section
187 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa and is responsible for:

• The promotion for the respect of gender equality;
• Protection, development and attainment of gender equality.

The powers and functions of the Commission are detailed in the Commission on Gender Equality Act 39
of 1996. In order to achieve its objective referred to in section 11 of the CGE Act; the Commission :

• Shall monitor and evaluate policies and practices of organs of state at any level; statutory bodies
or functionaries; public bodies and authorities; and private businesses, enterprises and institutions,
in order to promote gender equality and may make any recommendations that the Commission
deems necessary;

• Shall develop, conduct or manage information programmes; and education programmes, to foster
public understanding of matters pertaining to the promotion of gender equality and the role and
activities of the Commission;

• Shall evaluate any Act of Parliament; any system of personal and family law or custom; any system
of indigenous law, customs or practices; or any other law, in force at the commencement of this
Act or any law proposed by Parliament or any other legislature after the commencement of this
Act, affecting or likely to affect gender equality or the status of women and make recommenda -
tions to Parliament or such other legislature with regard thereto;

• May recommend to Parliament or any other legislature the adoption of new legislation which would
promote gender equality and the status of women;

• Shall investigate any gender-related issues of its own accord or on receipt of a complaint, and shall
endeavour to resolve any dispute, or rectify any act or omission, by mediation, conciliation or
negotiation: Provided that the Commission may at any stage refer any matter to-

A. the Human Rights Commission to deal with it in accordance with the provisions of the
Constitution and the law;

B. the Public Protector to deal with it in accordance with the provisions of the Constitution and
the law; or

C.  any other authority, whichever is appropriate: shall as far as is practicable maintain close
liaison with institutions, bodies or authorities with similar objectives to the Commission, in order
to foster common policies and practices and to promote co-operation in relation to the
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handling of complaints in cases of overlapping jurisdiction or other appropriate instances;

• Shall liaise and interact with any organisation which actively promotes gender equality and other
sectors of civil society to further the object of the Commission;

• Shall monitor the compliance with international conventions, international covenants and interna -
tional charters, acceded to or ratified by the Republic, relating to the object of the Commission;

• Shall prepare and submit reports to Parliament pertaining to any such convention, covenant or
charter relating to the object of the Commission; and

• May conduct research or cause research to be conducted to further the object of the Commission;
may consider such recommendations, suggestions and requests concerning the promotion of
gender equality as it may receive from any source.

1.3 PRIMARY OBJECTIVES

In order to fulfil its mandate as outlined in the Constitution and to be effective in its responsibilities, the
Commission pursues the following primary objectives:

• To develop effective monitoring mechanisms to ensure that gender sensitive strategies and policy
programmes are implemented in public and private institutions;

• To develop, conduct and manage information and education programmes to foster public
understanding on matters pertaining to gender equality and the roles and activities of the
Commission;

• To monitor and evaluate any Act of Parliament, law or treaty that affects, or is likely to affect gender
equality or the status of women and making recommendations to Parliament or the relevant
legislative body with regard hereto;

• To investigate any gender-related issue on its own accord or on receipt of a complaint and
endeavour to resolve any dispute or rectify any act or omission;

• To create international, regional and national strategic links to ensure mutual support and effective
collaboration to promote gender equality; and

• To create appropriate internal structures to promote a sustainable and effective functioning
Commission.

The Commission was established after the enactment of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa,
which allowed for the promulgation of the CGE Act in 1996.

The Commission has been in existence since 1997. The Commission was previously funded by the State
through the Department of Justice and Constitutional Development (DOJCD). The Commission is currently
funded through the Department of Women, Children and Persons with Disabilities .
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2. OVERVIEW OF SERVICE DELIVERY

The Commission has embarked on two projects, namely to produce a report on the implementation
on CEDAW by South Africa and the Implementation of the Beijing Declaration and Platform for Action.

The Commission successfully hosted a Gender and the Elections dialogue in April 2009. Furthermore  ,
the Commission applied for accreditation of observer status with the Independent Electoral Commis -
sion of South Africa (IEC) which was approved. This allowed the Commission to monitor the build-up
to the elections and Election Day. A meeting was arranged by the Commission with the IEC to
officially discuss the recommendations of the Monitoring Report and the Report was submitted to the
chairperson of the IEC in Pretoria .

The Commission also held a gender and the media dialogue in collaboration with the Media and
Diversity Development Agency (MDDA), the South African Human Rights Commission (SAHRC) and
the South African Broadcasting Corporation (SABC). The dialogue was hosted in order to debate the
role of women in the media. A report on the dialogue has been produced.

The Commission delegated a team consisting of two commissioners, the Acting Chief Executive Officer
and one staff member to attend the 54th Session on Commission on the Status of Women which was
held at the United Nations in New York. Apart from participating in the process of the CSW, the
Commission hosted a seminar on Gender Equality and Harmful Traditional Practices. This seminar was
attended by more than 50 delegates from across the globe .

2.1 RELEVANCIES AND KEY FOCAL POINTS OF BILLS AND MATTERS SUBMITTED TO PARLIAMENT AND
LEGISLATURES

DATE BILL DEPARTMENT TOPIC
/PORTFOLIO COMMITTEE

29 May 2009 Recognition of Department of This is a draft Bill aimed
Customary Marriages Home Affairs at amending the Recognition
Amendment Bill   of Customary Marriages Act

of 1998. The proposed
changes relate to insertions
and amendments of certain
definitions and also to revise
registration of customary
marriages .

The CGE supported the
proposals and also
recommended more
substantive revisions .

12 June 2009 Prevention of Department of Justice The aim of this draft Bill is to
Harassment Bill and Constitutional provide for protection orders

Development (DOJCD) against harassment; this also
necessitates consequent
amendments to the
Domestic Violence and
Criminal Procedure Acts so as
to provide a mechanism to
subpoena witnesses to
attend proceedings .
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DATE BILL DEPARTMENT TOPIC
/PORTFOLIO COMMITTEE

The CGE submission was in
support of the proposals .

The Bill is work in progress .

15 June 2009 Discussion paper on South African Law Reform This discussion paper
Prevention and Commission was designed to assess
Combating of Trafficking  the nature of legislation
in Persons Bill  that would be appropriate to

address trafficking in humans .

The CGE comments
proposed protective
measures for victims as well
as measures designed to
prevent trafficking that has
the force of law.

This is work in progress. The Bill
will still be tabled at
Parliament. The CGE will
make an oral submission to
support the written submission .

30 June 2009 Discussion and Draft Bill South African Law Reform To provide for the regulation,
on Adult Prostitution Commission alternatively prohibition, of

adult prostitution.
The CGE comments
proposed regulation as a
feasible approach to adult
prostitution .

Awaiting the tabling of the Bill
at Parliament and will
provide further input in
these discussions .

01 August 2009 Constitution 18th DOJCD The proposed Bill relates to
Amendment and legal proceedings against
State Liability Bill state departments and seeks

to regulate the manner in
which final orders are satisfied .

The CGE submission did not
support the proposals .

The Legal Department is
tracking the progress of the
Bill through the office of the
parliamentary officer .

9 October 2009 Protection of Personal DOJCD To establish minimum
Information Bill  standards for the processing



18

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010

of personal information and
the establishment of an
Information Protection
Regulator .

The CGE supported this
legislative initiative .

Awaiting the tabling
of the Bill .

19 October 2009 Submission on the 11th Portfolio Committee To assess the impact of
year of the on Women,  the Domestic Violence Act
implementation of the Children and Persons of 1998 (DVA).
Domestic Violence Act with Disabilities . The CGE assessment was

that the DVA is excellent
legislation but certain
stakeholders were not
complying with their
obligations in terms of
the Act .

The women’s ministry will
present its findings and the
CGE will be making
submissions on its
recommendations .

20 October 2009 Private Members Bill – Portfolio Committee (PC) The proposal aimed
proposed amendments on Private Members to extend CGE
to the CGE Act Legislative Proposals and jurisdiction into the

Special Petitions international domain .

The CGE expressed
reservations on the
procedure as this required
foreign agreements and the
cooperation of the
Department of International
Relations .

The CGE has made
submissions for amendments.
The amendments have not
yet been tabled, awaiting
tabling when further oral
submissions will be made .

9 November 2009 Public hearings on PC on Environmental Affairs The CGE highlighted
Political, Economic,  the nexus between
Legal, Gender and  economic activity,
Social Impact on  industrialisation, environmental
Climate Change  degradation and its impact

on gender .
The CGE is awaiting the out

DATE BILL DEPARTMENT TOPIC
/PORTFOLIO COMMITTEE
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comes of the recommenda-
tions from public hearings
and will make further
submissions .

2.2 OFFICIAL VISITS ABROAD INCLUDING DATES AND PURPOSE

Date Place Purpose
1- 12 March 2010 New York, USA Two Commissioners, the Acting Chief Executive

Officer and a staff member attended the 54th session
of the CSW .

The Commission hosted a seminar on Gender Equality and Harmful Traditional Practices.
The Commission has subsequently registered for accreditation with the Economic and Social Council
(ECOSOC). By the next CSW, the Commission would be presenting its own report and will not be
accompanying government as part of its delegation.

Approximately 50 participants were in attendance. The Commission has produced a report on its
participation at the CSW and the seminar. This report has been tabled at Parliament .

2.3 OVERVIEW OF SERVICE DELIVERY FOR 2009/10

2.3.1 REVIEW OF LEGAL DEPARTMENT SERVICE DELIVERY

The Legal Department investigates complaints received and identifies areas of systematic gender
discrimination.

It evaluates laws, customs and practices that affect gender equality and/or the status of women. The
Department collaborates with other institutions or bodies with similar objectives such as the South
African Law Reform Commission. It litigates in High Courts as Amicus Curiae and lodges cases at the
Equality Courts.

2.3.2 REVIEW OF PUBLIC EDUCATION AND INFORMATION SERVICE DELIVERY

The Public Education and Information (PEI) Department achieved the strategic objectives of the
Commission through a series of interventions including dialogues, seminars and information sessions.
Interventions during this past financial year were conducted mainly by raising public awareness on
gender related issues.

These interventions were planned and conducted within six themes as per the Strategic Plan
2008-2013 , together with the National Programme of Action which was developed for the financial
year 2009/10 .

DATE BILL DEPARTMENT TOPIC
/PORTFOLIO COMMITTEE
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2.3.3 REVIEW OF RESEARCH AND POLICY SERVICE DELIVERY

The Research Department informs and supports the objectives of the Commission, notably with
regard to: monitoring of all organs of society to ensure that gender equality is respected, protected,
developed and attained; assessing legislation from a gender perspective; monitoring South Africa’s
progress towards the attainment of gender equality and compliance with international norms, liaising
and interacting with institutions, bodies or authorities, as well as with civil society, to promote gender
equality.

The Department was able to complete all its target projects in this financial year with reports in key
thematic areas including : Gender-Based Violence, poverty, culture, religion and tradition, HIV and
AIDS and democracy and good governance.

2.3.3.1 MONITORING AND EVALUATION

Monitoring and evaluation is conducted in terms of the African Gender and Development
Index (AGDI) which incorporates qualitative monitoring against indices of the Gender-Related
Development Index and the Gender Empowerment Measure.

These important aspects of the Commission’s designated work enable the Commission to
collect and record information as part of an ongoing practice. In 2009/10, this was instrumental
in observing progress in regard to the country’s compliance within these international platforms.

2.3. 4 REVIEW OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The Commission undertook an Information Technology (IT) Audit Process to assess the compliance
of IT governance, IT policies and re-alignment of the Departmental Plan of Action to meet the
Commission’s strategic objectives.

The Commission embarked on a domain transfer to provide a more efficient, effective and cost
effective hosting of its domain. The Commission’s IT Department also reviewed all service level
agreements (SLAs) and contracts to ensure that planned projects are implemented within specific
timeframes. This resulted in improved IT infrastructure and consequent deliveries.

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010
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3. HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT REPORT

The Commission would note that this Department’s budget in terms of employee expenditure for specific
programmes during 2009/10 is based on :

3.1 PERSONNEL EXPENDITURE

3.1.1 PERSONNEL COSTS BY SALARY BAND

3.1. 2 SALARIES, OVERTIME, HOME OWNER’S ALLOWANCES AND MEDICAL ASSISTANCE BY
PROGRAMME

The following tables provide a summary per programme and salary band of expenditure incurred
as a result of salaries, overtime, home owner’s allowances and medical assistance :

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010

Salary band Number of Personnel Percentage of Average
employees expenditure total personnel personnel

cost cost per
employee

Skilled (Level 3-5) 12 1,028,027.15 3% 85,668.93
Highly skilled (6-8) 22  3,698,543.98  2%  168,115.64
Highly skilled 48 16,917,468.75 54% 352,447.27
supervision (9-12)
Senior 3  3,888,508.53  12% 1,296,169.51
Management (15)
Commissioners (16) 9  5,848,733.20  19%  649,859.24
Total 94 31,381,281.60 100%   333,843.42

Programme Salaries Overtime  Home Owner’s  Medical Leave TOTAL
Allowance Assistance

Commissioners  5, 482, 179.97   29, 744.23 336,809.23  5,848,733.20
CEO   1, 599, 706.40       1,599,706.40
Financial 1, 535, 185.58 40, 895.27 14, 739.40 22, 032.00  58,752.65 1,671,604.90
Management
Internal      458, 312.74       984.20                   8,597.71      467,894.65
Audit/Monitoring
and Evaluation
Human Resources        729, 096.71      1652.21  13, 212.00     1642.66       23,936.89      769,540.47
Public Education  2, 389, 917.95     4, 569.50    27, 525.00    28, 540.20  158,787.13   2,609,339.78
and Training
Legal Services   3, 858, 002.15   4, 785.75     38, 334.00  43, 902.65 156,210.22  4,101,234.77
Research and 3, 526, 846.69  10, 346.09   26, 424.00  74, 692.72    81,451.70  3,719,761.20
Policy Programme
Parliamentary       453, 617.73    1, 546.60               29,520.22     484,684.55
Liaison and
Legislation
Information and     1, 098, 261.77        892.81      16, 515.00  18, 622.00    40,955.47  1,175,247.05
Communication
Administration    8, 185, 652.26 26, 222.29 126, 660.74 185, 277.56 409,721.78 8,933,534.63

Total 29, 316, 799.95 91, 894.72 263, 410.14 404, 453.79 1,304,743.00 31,381,281.60
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3.2 JOB EVALUATION

The process of job evaluation and job-grading was initiated . This will be finalised in the forthcoming
financial year. This process will be coupled with restructuring and re-engineering of the Commission to
make sure that the staff are appropriately skilled, efficient and effective and that the Commission’s
resources are aptly deployed.

3.3 PERFORMANCE RELATED REWARDS

Please note that the Commission did not pay any form of incentive including cash bonuses for the
financial year in question.

3.4 FOREIGN WORKERS

Foreign workers within the CGE in 2009/10 4

3.5 LEAVE UTILISATION

3.5.1 SICK LEAVE

As part of the Commission’s management process, the organisation monitored the utilisation
of sick and annual leave. The following tables provide a record of sick and annual leave for the
period under review :

Salary Band  Number Total % days with Number of % of Total Average Average
of Days Medical Employees Employees Cost per Days pe r
Employees Taken [U8] Using Sick Using Sick Employee Employee

Certification Leave   Leave
Skilled 12    51 11.6%    6    12%     85, 668.93 4.25
(level 3-5)
Highly skilled 22  127 8.66%  11       9%  168, 115.64 5.77
(6-8)
Highly skilled 48 170 6.47%  11       6%     352, 447.27 3.54
supervision
(9-12)
Senior    3 0  0.00%    0     0% 1, 296, 169.51   -
Management
(13-16)
Commissioners    9 7 128.57%    9   129%    649, 859.24 0.78
Total   94   355  7.89%   28  32.18%   333, 843.42  3.78
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3.5.2 ANNUAL LEAVE

3.5.3 LEAVE PAYOUTS

The following table summarises payments made to employees in lieu of leave not taken :

The above leave payout table further highlights the number of people who have resigned and
left the Commission, the total amount paid in both previous financial years is reflected.

3.6 EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year. Turnover rates are
a component of the employment profile of any organisation.

The following tables provide a summary of such turnover rates by salary band (Table 3.6.1) and by crit -
ical occupations (Table 3.6.2) for the Commission:

3.6.1 ANNUAL TURNOVER RATES BY SALARY BAND
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Salary Band Number of Total Days Taken Average Per
Employees Who  Employee
Have Taken Leave

Skilled (level 3-5) 1 147.87 14.787
Highly skilled (6-8)  20  293.86 14.693
Highly skilled  20  337.12 16.856
supervision (9-12)
Senior Management 0 0 0
(level 13-16)
Commissioners 5  43.09  8.618
Total 55 821.94 14.9443

Reason Number of Total Amount Paid Average per
Employees Paid Out Out Employee

Current leave payout 10 148, 915.65 14, 892.00
on termination of
service 09/10
Total 10  148, 915.65 14, 892.00

Salary band Number of Appointments Terminations Turnover Rate
Employees per and Transfers and Transfers
Band as on 1 within the out of the
April 2009 Commission Commission

Skilled (level 3-5) 11    1   1 0
Highly skilled 19 5 appointments   1
(level 6-8)     at level 6 4 terminations  4
Highly skilled  47  2 transfers, 8 terminations  8
supervision  12 appointments
(level 9-12)
Senior 1 0 1 termination 1
Management
band A – 13-15
Commissioners 9 0 1 termination  1
Total  65 20 16 14



Please note that under senior management band A which is level 13 (Head of Departments), we
have four staff members acting as Heads of Departments (HODs). These appointees are captured
at their correct level at (level 9-12).

3.6.2 ANNUAL TURNOVER RATES BY CRITICAL OCCUPATION

3.6.3 REASONS NOMINATED FOR STAFF LEAVING DEPARTMENTS

3.7 EMPLOYMENT EQUITY

3.7.1 TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES (INCLUDING EMPLOYEES WITH DISABILITIES) IN EACH OF THE
FOLLOWING OCCUPATIONAL CATEGORIES AT 31 MARCH 2010
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Occupation Number of Appointments Terminations Turnover Rate
Employees per and Transfers to and Transfers
Occupation as the Respective out of the
on 1 April 2009 Department Department

Legal Service 11 3 appointments 2 terminations 2
Public 11 1 transfer to the 1 termination 1
Education and   department
Information 6 appointments
Research 12 0 2 2
Total  34 10 5 5

Termination Type Number % of total
Death 0 0
Resignation 8 61.5
Expiry of contract 4 31
Dismissal – operational 0 0
changes
Dismissal – misconduct 1 7.5
Dismissal – inefficiency 0 0
Discharge due to illness 0 0
Retirement 0 0
Transfers to other public 0 0
service departments
Other 0 0
Total 13 100

Occupational Male Female
Categories

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total
Legislators, 3 1  0 0 5  2  0 1 12
senior
officials
and
managers
Professionals 8 0  1 0 5  2
 0 0 16Technicians 20
1 0 0 12 0 2 0 35
and associate
professionals
Clerks 2 0  0 0 15 2 0 0 19
Service and 0 0  0 0 10 0 0 0 10
sales workers
Skilled
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3.8 EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES BY PROGRAMME AT 31 MARCH 2010
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and fishery n/a n/a n/a
workers
Craft and n/a n/a n/a
workers
related trades
workers
Plant and n/a n/a n/a
workers
machine
operators and
assemblers
Elementary n/a n/a n/a
occupations
Employees 0 0  0 0 1  0  0 0 1
with
disabilities
Total 33 2 1 0 48 6 2 1 93

Programme Number of Number Number of Vacancy Number of
Vacancies of Posts Posts Filled Rate Posts Filled

Additional to the
Establishment

Commissioners 3 12 9 25% 0
Human  1 4  3
 25% 0 Resources
IT/C  0 4  4  0%
 0 Legal – 2 3
 1  67% 0 National
Research – 1 4  3  25% 0
National
Education – 1 2  1  50%
National
Provincial Co- 0 9  9  0% 0
ordinators
Provinces –  1 9  8  11% 0
Legal
Provinces –  1 9  8  11% 0
Research
Provinces – 0 9    9  0% 0
Education
Provinces –  1 9  8  11% 0
Administrators
Provinces – 0 9  9  0% 0
Office Assistants
Finance   1 5  4
 20% 0 Parliament 0 1
1  0% 0 PA/Admin –
 1 9  8  11% 0
National
Driver –  0 1  1  0% 0
National
– National
CEO’s Office 3 3  0  100% 0

Total 16 103 87 16% 0
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3.9 RECRUITMENT

3.10 PROMOTIONS

No promotions have been effected during the period under review.

3.11 TERMINATIONS

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010

Occupational Male Female Total
bands

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White
Top 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
Management
Senior 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Management
Professionally 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
qualified
Skilled, technical and 8 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 10
academically qualified
workers
Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 3
and discretionally
decision making
Unskilled and n/a n/a n/a
defined
decision
making [U10]
Total   11  5 16

Occupational Male Female Total
bands

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White
Top 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2
Management
Senior   n/a     n/a   0
Management
Professionally   n/a     n/a   0
qualified
Skilled,
4 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 6
technical and
academically
qualified
workers
Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 3
and discretionally
decision making
Unskilled and n/a n/a 0
defined
decision making
Employees n/a n/a 0
with disabilities
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3.12 DISCIPLINARY MATTERS

3.12.1 DISCIPLINARY ACTION TAKEN

3.13 SKILLS DEVELOPMENT
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Occupational Male Female Total
bands

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White
Professionals 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
Total 0 1 1

Occupational Male Female Total
Categories

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White
Legislators, 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
senior
officials and
managers
Professionals 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Technical and 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2
associate
professionals
Clerks  0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
Service and  n/a  n/a n/a n/a  n/a n/a  n/a  n/a 0
sales
workers
Skilled n/a n/a   n/a  n/a   n/a   n/a   n/a n/a 0
agriculture
and fishery
workers
Craft and n/a n/a   n/a  n/a   n/a   n/a   n/a n/a 0
agriculture
related trades
workers
Plant and  n/a  n/a n/a n/a  n/a n/a  n/a  n/a 0
machine
operators and
assemblers
Elementary  n/a  n/a n/a n/a  n/a n/a  n/a  n/a 0
occupations
Employees  n/a  n/a n/a n/a  n/a n/a  n/a  n/a 0
with disabilities
Total  2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 4
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4. PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE

4.1 PROGRAMME: Office of the Commissioners

4.1.1 OVERVIEW

Commissioners are appointed nationally, but deployed to provinces to provide strategic leadership
and to raise the profile of the Commission.

The Commissioners undertook various activities during the financial year 2009/10 to ensure that the
mandate of the Commission is realised through conducting workshops, chairing meetings, partic -
ipating in roundtables and/or seminars, developing concept and position papers and executing
gender related presentations at strategic levels in both the public and private sectors.

4.1.2 PURPOSE

The prime purpose of the Commissioners is to oversee that the mandate of the Commission is
achieved. In support of this, the Commissioners are also responsible to provide strategic leadership
to ensure that programmes adopted within the Commission are aligned and fulfilled according to
said mandate.

4.1.3 PRIMARY OBJECTIVES

• To ensure that the Commission delivers on its constitutional mandate;

• To preserve institutional autonomy and independence;

• To ensure good corporate governance by executing their fiduciary responsibility and
performing the management function;

• To provide strategic leadership by ensuring that the Commission’s organisational policies
and practices are consistent with its mandate;

• To strengthen institutional systems by serving on statutory committees and other committees
as allocated by plenary; and ,

• To raise the profile of the Commission by engaging stakeholders within the Commission’s
development programmes.

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010
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4.1.4 SERVICE DELIVERY ACHIEVEMENTS

Objective Activity Service Performance
Delivery
Indicators

Ensuring good Participation in plenary meetings Four plenary Seven plenary meetings held.
governance  meetings per year All commissioners attended.

Establish and coordinate the Compliance with Finance Committee
Finance Committee the Public Finance established .

and Treasury Lead commissioner identified:
Regulations Commissioner Mfanozelwe

Shozi
Meetings are scheduled
and held every two months .
A total of five meetings
were held .
This Committee has been
in existence since 2008.

Establish and coordinate Good Committee Lead commissioner identified:
Governance Committee established Commissioner Yvette

Lead commissioner Abrahams .
identified Meetings held bi-monthly.
One meeting This Committee was
per quarter established in 2009 .

Allocated commissioners to Commissioners Commissioners Hicks and
serve on Audit Committee identified Loyilane have been

allocated to serve on the
Audit Committee .

Participate at the Audit Meetings attended Participated in three and
Committee meetings and  seven meetings respectively.
provide guidance

Providing Establish and coordinate Thematic Commissioners Committees have been
strategic Committees as per the Strategic allocated to  established
leadership Plan 2008-2013 . committees . Lead Commissioners have

Identify lead commissioners . Lead commissioners been identified, namely:
Chair Thematic Committees as identified . Gender and Poverty :
per themes - see opposite . Bi-monthly Commissioner Yvette

Abrahams
Dates of meetings identified . committee meetings Gender- Based Violence :

held . Commissioner
Mfanozelwe Shozi
Gender, Democracy and
Good Governance:
Commissioner Janine Hicks
Gender, Culture, Religion
and Traditional Practices :
Commissioner Rosieda
Shabodien
Gender and HIV and AIDS:
Commissioner Portia Loyilane
National Gender Machinery :
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Commissioner Boogie
Khutsoane

Produce and distribute minutes Minutes of meetings Minutes produced per
Thematic Committee
meeting.

Initiate/Establish and coordinate Minutes of meeting Strategic Planning meetings
Strategic Plan Committee One Session held have been coordinated .

in March 2010

Initiate /Coordinate Strategic One strategic planning
Planning Session Programme meeting was planned and

coordinated for 21-22 July
2009 . Strategic Planning
Report is available .
Minutes have been
produced and are available
for all meetings held.
This planning session was to
assist and guide the senior
managers in the
development of the National
Programme of Action .

Develop concept notes/ Concepts notes Concept note on Gender
documents to give strategic giving strategic and the Elections
direction on Programme of direction to be developed to provide
Action implementation developed per direction to the Gender

thematic area and Elections Project
that was embarked upon.
Concept note on Gender
and the 2010 FIFA World Cup
South Africa™ was
developed to provide
direction to the build-up of
interventions in light of this
event. Specific focus was
human trafficking and
sex work .

Concept note on
implementation of the GB
developed to guide with the
implementation of the
GB tool .

Concept note on Gender
and Energy developed
providing information on the
Gender and Energy debate
that has ensued worldwide .

Concept note on Culture
and Harmful Traditional
Practices developed to give
direction to the public
education and information

Objective Activity Service Performance
Delivery
Indicators
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interventions .
Concept note on
Commission’s Carbon
Footprint developed forming
part of the Gender and
Energy debate .

Concept note on Gender
and the Media developed to
provide to direction to the
Gender and the Media
dialogue which was hosted in
October 2009 .

Compliance Assess and review current Policies reviewed, Finance policies
with policies policies and practices assessed and reviewed, updated
and practices   adopted and adopted by

the Finance Department,
Plenary and the
Audit Committee .

Coordinate Legal Committee Review legislation Legal opinions developed
meetings Develop legal as guidelines to assure

opinions to give adherence and compliance
strategic direction with policies and practices as

set out by the Commission .

Strengthening Liaison meetings with other Partnerships Engaged in a meeting
institutional Chapter 9 institutions , namely developed. with the IEC to discuss the
systems the SAHRC, the Office of the Meetings April 2009 Elections

Public Protector(OPP), the IEC coordinated  Monitoring Report and the
and the Commission for Cultural and attended . Gender and Elections
and Linguistic Rights(CRL) Sat on boards and Report where their

meetings in an  respective recommendations
advisory capacity , were discussed .
such as the Western Convened provincial fora
Cape Women’s  with IEC, SAHRC and OPP .
Network Against Held meeting with CRL on
Violence, Centre for possible partnerships .
Public Participation Partnerships were developed
and the National at provincial level and
Lottery . provinces ; collaborated

on interventions such as
ukuthwala, 50/50 campaign
for the elections in 2009 .

Liaise with government Meetings Liaised with Ethekwini
departments on gender coordinated and Municipality on gender issues
related issues held concerning the 2010 FIFA

World Cup South Africa ™.

Held meetings with the
national and provincial
houses of traditional leaders
regarding issues of harmful

Objective Activity Service Performance
Delivery
Indicators
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traditional practices.
Proposal was that further
meetings to be organised to
discuss partnership and
collaboration on interventions
relating to gender training
and harmful traditional
practices .

Advise institutions on gender Gender Held meetings with the
equality and gender mainstreaming Gauteng Legislature on
mainstreaming  sessions held gender mainstreaming and

the importance of
implementing gender
mainstreaming into their
programmes by engaging
in gender budgeting.

Partner with organisations that Partnerships Held meetings with the South
have similar interest of gender coordinated and African Police Service (SAPS)
equality such as NGOs, Office on developed and OSW on ukhutwala
the Status of Women (OSW),  in Kwa-Zulu Natal (KZN ).
Western Cape, Women’s Network
on Violence Against Women
(WCWNVAW)

Input given to Gauteng
Government’s Gender
Policy framework .

Partnered with Women’s
Legal Centre on Recognition
of Muslim Marriages.

Raising the Public speaking, representing Profile of the Presented a paper at
profile of the the Commission at different Commission the KZN Provincial Gender
Commission platforms and present papers has been raised Machinery (PGM) and

on gender issues .  in public arena Legislature .
Further activity includes workshops, during this r
dialogues and seminars. A total of financial yea
43 interventions took place .   Presented paper on findings

of the Equality Courts .

Conduct media interviews Interviews were Participated as member on
conducted through panel at roundtable
print, radio and discussion at the Centre
electronic media for Policy Studies .

Coordinated Hurisa review of
Chapter 9s ’ conduct and
work relations; the discussion
took the form of a public
debate in Durban .

Objective Activity Service Performance
Delivery
Indicators
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Delivered a paper on
Women’s Participation in
Local Governance in KZN .
Presented a paper on
Gender Equality in Higher
Education at a conference in
Durban .

Presented on Gender and
the Elections at the IEC in
Pretoria .

Presented a paper on
Women’s Participation in the
Workplace in Ladysmith , KZN .

Presented a paper on
Gender Transformation at
University of the
Western Cape .

Presented a paper on
Women’s Representation in
the Private Sector, in KZN .

Conducted workshops with
the South African Council of
Churches (SACC) on Gender
and Religion .

Presented a paper on
Gender-Based Violence at
the Department of
International Relations and
Cooperation .

Presented a paper on the
Mandate of the Commission
to the Metsweding
Municipality , as per invitation
from the Municipality .

Facilitated a panel discussion
at the Black Management
Forum on Culture, Gender,
Religion and the Constitution .

Presented a paper on Critical
Issues Affecting Women in
Africa at the University
of Pretoria .

Participated in a roundtable
discussion at the Heinrich
Boll Foundation on
Mainstreaming Gender into
Legislation and Governance .

Objective Activity Service Performance
Delivery
Indicators



34

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010

Facilitated a three -day
workshop for Commission’s
staff on the Convention on
the Elimination of All Forms of
Discrimination Against
Women (CEDAW) .

Attended National Energy
Regulator of South Africa
(Nersa) hearings in
Cape Town; delivered oral
submission on behalf of the
Commission .

Presented a paper on
Exclusion and Prejudice from
within the Lesbian, Gay,
Bisexual, Transgendered and
Inter-Sexed (LGBTI)
Community .

Chaired two provincial Men’s
Fora held in Mpumalanga to
create awareness among
men on the rights of women ;
to make women aware and
fully participate in gender
equality; to thrive and
maintain the 50/50
representation ; to
acknowledge the struggle for
democracy and gender
equality. A Men’s Forum
meeting was also held in KZN  .

Held a meeting with the KZN
Population Unit to discuss
possible partnerships .

Facilitated two workshops in
KZN with Young Men on
gender- related issues .

Presented a paper titled
Men Engaging in Ensuring
Gender Equality at the
Mpumalanga Men’s Forum .

Attended and participated in
the South African Women in
Dialogue (SAWID) Annual
Conference .

Presented on the
Commission’s 16 Days of
Activism Programme at the

Objective Activity Service Performance
Delivery
Indicators
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Government Communication
and Information System
(GCIS) to post on their
website .

Participated in a roundtable
discussion in partnership with
Genderlinks on Polygamy in
at Constitution Hill,
Johannesburg.

Formed a partnership with
the National Health Men’s
Forum to discuss gender
issues. Follow up meetings will
be hosted and coordinated
by the National Health
Men’s Forum .

4.2 . PROGRAMME: Internal Audit

4.2 .1. OVERVIEW

The responsibility of the Internal Audit function is to assist the Audit Committee and management
to effectively discharge their responsibilities. The scope of Internal Audit’s work is to review the
adequacy and efficiency of the Commission’s network of control processes, to report findings
and make recommendations to improve shortcomings.

Internal Audit has been operational for the 2009/10 financial year.

Documents that govern the operation of Internal Audit have been developed and executed.

Projects identified within the operational plan were completed on or before targeted date.
These included auditing of three provincial departments , namely Legal, Research and Public
Education and Information.

Reports have been concluded and issued to the respective department and provincial heads to
commence correcting the risks that have been identified.

4.2.2 THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of internal control was not entirely effective for the 2009/10 year.

During the year under review several deficiencies in the system of internal control were reported
by the internal auditors and the Auditor-General South Africa.

In certain instances, the matters reported previously have been fully and satisfactorily addressed.

Objective Activity Service Performance
Delivery
Indicators
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4.2.3 INTERNAL AUDIT

All audit projects were completed and finalised as per operational plan. No projects were rolled
over to the next financial year.

The internal auditor has advised the Audit Committee and Plenary about the audit finding. These
have been communicated to management through reports. Subsequently, the draft audit reports
have been finalised with management’s input and the internal auditor is satisfied with its
operations.

4. 3 OFFICE OF THE CHIEF OPERATIONS OFFICER

4.3.1 OVERVIEW

The focus of the Acting National Coordinator of Provinces (ANCP), who has temporarily replaced
the position of Chief Operations Officer, has been to maintain maximum efficiency of the
Commission’s operations at provincial levels and to fulfil commitments to internal and external
stakeholders.

ANCP has strived to facilitate appropriate linkages and information flow between management
and provinces. This is to ensure that the information required by the Management Committee
(MANCO) meetings is obtained; that provincial offices are updated with the relevant information
when required ; and  , in particular , those (provinces) receive the required guidance and/or
decisions by MANCO and the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) .

The strategic management function of the ANCP is to coordinate the provincial offices to ensure
that the Programme of Action (POA) for the financial year is implemented.

4.3.2 SERVICE DELIVERY ACHIEVEMENTS

Objectives Output Outputs Actual Variances
Performance
Measure/
Service Delivery
Indicators

Coordinate the POA’s Nine POA’s and Achieved None
development of developed Work Plans for
provincial POA’s and provinces in line

implemented with national
strategic plan .

Coordinate and Departmental Reports on provincial Partially Achieved Non- submission
oversee the programmes implementation  of reports by
implementation of implemented circulated to all  provinces on time.
the three  MANCO members .
departmental
programmes
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Liaison for reporting Reports Quarterly reports Achieved Content of reports
from provinces to  submitted covering  disputed by HOD’s
line departments  all departmental  in terms of POA

requirements . Reporting lines and
format has had
negative impact .

Oversee the Budgets Ensured compliance Partially achieved No clear budget
development of compiled with CGE financial  guidelines
budgets and  systems in line   (Financial Quarterly
expenditure versus  with legislation .  reviews).
the allocation of Needs to become
provincial transfers practice within the

new financial year .
Overall bureaucratic
process.
Clear directions on
processes and format
for procurement to be
instituted; provinces
to plan in
collaboration with
Head Office to ensure
compliance with
Finance Department .

Oversee the Audit of Address and resolve Not achieved Not done .
allocation and resources and provincial resources
management of requirements in requirements .
all provincial terms of safety
resources and equipment

Participate in Regular meeting Ensure the flow of Achieved None .
Management with PC’s to information from
Committee ensure sharing MANCO and
Meetings, of information Committees to
and all Thematic   provinces .
Committee
Meetings

Lease Contracts Management Renewal of leases Achieved None .
of lease completed on time.
agreements

Fleet Management Oversee the Insurance Partially achieved Contract was
movements of Tracker  suspended in
the CGE vehicles Maintenance  March 2009 -

and Services August 2009 due
Petrol Cards / Usage . to non-payment/

suspension of the
account by the
Organisational
Diagnostic (OD)
team .

Objectives Output Outputs Actual Variances
Performance
Measure/
Service Delivery
Indicators
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4.4 PROGRAMME: Legal

4.4.1 OVERVIEW

The functions of the Legal Department as per the legal mandate of the Commission as outlined
in the Commission of Gender Equality Act are to investigate and manage :

• Gender related complaints received from public members;
• Preparation of reports based on the International Instruments such as CEDAW and Beijing

Platform of Action;
• Submission to Parliament on old and new legislations from a gendered perspective ;
• Representation of complainants in the Equality Court as mandated by the Promotion of

Equality and Prevention of Unfair Discrimination Act 2000 PEPUDA; and
• Litigation on gender related cases or acts as amicus curiae where the Commission finds it

necessary to do so.

4.4.2 PURPOSE

The purpose of the Department is to make submissions to Parliament on legislation impacting on
gender equality, investigate and manage complaints and litigate when deemed necessary.

4.4.3 PRIMARY OBJECTIVES

• Investigate any gender-related issue of its own accord or upon receipt of a complaint and
endeavour to resolve any dispute or rectify any act;

• Evaluate laws, customs, practices and indigenous, personal and family law affecting
gender equality or the status of women that are in force or proposed by Parliament;

• Monitor compliance with international conventions, covenants and international charters
acceded to and ratified by the government that have a bearing on the objectives of the
Commission; and

• Make submissions to the law-making process especially relating to gender issues.

4.4.4 SERVICE DELIVERY ACHIEVEMENTS

4.4.4.1 COMPLAINTS MANAGEMENT

The Department works within specific timeframes for the management of complaints
received. A total 2 01 complaints for the financial year 2009/10 were received; in addition,
a total number of 2  38  complaints were brought forward from 2008/09.

The table below indicates the complaints that were managed per province during the
period under review 2009/10.

New files opened during 2009/10 :

Nature of GP LP WC MP NW FS KZN EC NC HO TOTAL
Complaint
Gender 0 0 3 4 0 0 5  0  3  4  19
Discrimination

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010
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Nature of GP LP WC MP NW FS KZN EC NC HO TOTAL
Complaint
Domestic Violence 2 4 1 0 0 0 1  0  8  0  16
Maintenance 3 2 3 2 0 6 1  0  5  1  23
Divorce  2 1 4 0 0 9 0  0  8  1  25
Custody and Access 2 0 4 0 0 0 1  0  4  0  11
Estate  1 1 2 1 0 15 0  0 4 5 29
Gender-Based 0 0 5 0 0 0 1  0  0  0  6
Violence
Sexual Harassment 0 0 1 0 0 0 0  0  0  2  3
Labour   0 0 3 0 0 2 0  0  7  2  14
Unlawful Eviction 0 1 1 1 0 0 0  0  2  0  5
Claim for Restitution 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0  0  0  0
Tradition/Culture 0 1 1 0 0 2 1  0  0  0  5
Others 0 0 2 4 0 1 1  0  32 5 45
Total 10 10 30 12 0 35 11 0 73 20 201

Of the 43 9 complaints that were managed during 2009/10, 224 files were finalised and closed.

The following table reflects the files brought forward, files that were opened, files that were closed and
those carried over to the next financial year. There are a total of 21 5 files being carried over to the financial
Year 2010/11 .

Province Files Opened Closed Files pending
Brought files files this year
Forward
2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 2010/11

Gauteng 23 30 17 36

Limpopo 33 10 28 15

Western Cape 29 30 46 13

Mpumalanga 19 12 19 12

North West 17 0 7  10

Free State 26 35 18 43

Kwa Zulu Natal 41 11 26 26

Eastern Cape 29 0 7  22

Northern Cape 21 73 56 38

Total 238 201 224 215
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40

4.4.4.2 LITIGATION

No cases were identified for litigation in the financial year under review.

4.4.4.3 COURT MONITORING

For the year under review, 16 cases were monitored countrywide. The purpose of monitor -
ing was to ascertain the courts functionality.

4.4.4.5 PUBLIC HEARINGS

The Legal Department participated in 10 public hearings organised by parliament. The Pub -
lic hearings held were on the Traditional Courts Bill

4.4.5 SERVICE DELIVERY REPORTING FOR 2009/10

THEME 1
GENDER EQUALITY AND POVERTY

GOAL: Eradication of Poverty in South Africa

The Commission, in partnership with various stakeholders, monitors the standards of living and quality of
life of South African women, including female headed households, with the main aim of promoting job
creation, economic opportunities and balance dependence on social grants.

OBJECTIVE TWO

CGE developed a gender sensitive tool, the Gender Barometer, to conduct objective assessments on
government’s impact on poverty.

ACTIVITIES/PROJECTS DEPARTMENT INDICATORS/IMPACT TIMEFRAME ACTUAL
PERFORMANCE

National Launch of Research, Political heads of 30 June 2009 Done
the Gender PEI, Legal government
Barometer (National departments

and/or and key stakeholders
Provincial) attend the launch

and concur on the need
for the CGE Gender
Barometer

Assessment of poverty Legal Increased number of Ongoing Done
related complaints on (National complaints received  Complaints stats
monthly and and/or ongoing
quarterly basis Provincial

90% of complaints
received resolved

Litigation: Litigate on Legal Legal Consideration Ongoing Not done.
cases related to (National explored to litigate  No cases were
poverty as these arise and on poverty cases  identified for litigation .

Provincial)

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010
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THEME TWO
GENDER-BASED VIOLENCE (GBV)

GOAL: The Commission , cooperating with strategic partners, works towards the creation of a
violence-free society by significantly reducing GBV

OBJECTIVE ONE

Ensure that the national legislative and policy frameworks comply with all international GBV
instruments/protocols to which the South African government is a signatory.

ACTIVITY/PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATORS/ IMPACT TIMEFRAME DONE/NOT DONE
Track legislation on Legal Comprehensive Ongoing Done.
Human Trafficking and (National submission is put Submission sent to
Migration . submission forward and proposed Parliament before
Propose amendments informed by amendments enacted the DOJCD .
to legislation and Provincial
make submission inputs)
to Parliament

Track international Legal Submissions made July-August Done
and regional (National to Parliament 2009 Submission was sent
declarations on sex and to Parliament in
work to which SA Provincial) 2008/09. Bill has
is a signatory  not been discussed .

Monitor relevant
legislation and
make submissions

OBJECTIVE TWO

Monitor enforcement of legislation seeking to address GBV and improvement of effectiveness of
service delivery.

ACTIVITY/PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATORS/ IMPACT TIMEFRAME DONE/NOT DONE
Three information PEI and Legal Participants of the November – Projected : 9 x 3 = 27
sessions per province: (Provincial) information session December Actual : 18
To promote awareness  are informed and 2009 Variance  : 9
and understanding  motivated to take
of GBV legislation  action in their
and mechanism for  communities
redress to targeted
communities in all
nine provinces .
Specific focus on
Beijing, CEDAW
Karridene and
Kopanong .
Declarations
by conducting
three information
sessions per province
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Conduct audits of Research Trained officers with a September Training on CEDAW
legislation that and Legal sound GBV related 2009 conducted in- house,
addresses GBV and  legislation and  27 officers trained
provide  international and
recommendations to  regional instruments,
feed into submissions  plus other instruments
to Parliament  relating to gender

Conducts audits of Research Audit Report finalised Ongoing Submission on
legislation that and Legal   Human Trafficking
addresses GBV and (National   and Adult
provides and Prostitution has
recommendations Provincial) been made .
to feed into
submissions to
Parliament

Management of all Legal Effective complaints January/ Ongoing .
GBV related (National management and February
complaints and cases are finalised 2010

Provincial) or referred.
Increased number of
complaints.

THEME THREE
GENDER, DEMOCRACY AND GOOD GOVERNANCE

GOAL: In partnership with civil society and through improved frameworks and systems for monitoring,
evaluation and reporting, the Commission becomes the national authority on compliance to the gender
equality legislative and policy framework, gender mainstreaming and good practice.

OBJECTIVE ONE

Ensure all national and provincial legislation has been assessed from gender equality perspective,
that implementation of legislation for promoting and protecting gender equality is tracked and moni -
tored, and that women have made qualitative input in such processes.

ACTIVITY/PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATORS/ IMPACT TIMEFRAME DONE/NOT DONE
Develop and Legal and Monitoring and Ongoing . Done.
implement a system Research submissions protocol
to ensure that all (National) developed .
legislation passing
through parliament  Annual targets set for
and provincial reviews and legislative
legislatures is reviews conducted .
scrutinised from a
gender equality Pre-1994 legislation that
perspective and affects women identified
complies with relevant and recommendations
adopted international for Law Reform

OBJECTIVE TWO

Monitor enforcement of legislation seeking to address GBV and improvement of effectiveness of
service delivery.
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national, and Commission developed .
sub -regional
declarations and Broad consultation with
frameworks including: relevant stakeholder

groups conducted
a) Establish a panel of to facilitate compiling

experts and produce of submissions .
quality reviews ,
timeously  Submissions made

from a gender equality
b) Establish a tracking viewpoint on all Bills

system to monitor and legislation .
legislation and resolve
blockages Records kept of

lobbying with
c) Together with strategic civil society partners

partners, identify for recommendations
pre-1994 legislation to be tabled at NA
that affects women or NCOP .
and assess
consequent action
that needs to be
taken.

Lobbying with civil
society partners for
recommendations
to be tabled at the
National Assembly
(NA) or National
Council of Provinces
(NCOP) and Provincial
Legislatures .

Ensuring women’s Legal, Civil society partnerships Ongoing . Done.
input into and Research, established to ensure
participation of Communic- and maximise women’s
policy and legislative ation input into law-making
processes at both (National processes .
provincial and and
national levels; Provincial) Report available with
eport on women’s  recommendations on
participation in the  women’s participation
legislative process  in legislative process .
and make
recommendations Submissions made to
on improvements . NA and NCOP on

strengthening  women’s
participation in
legislative processes,
drawing on provincial
offices inputs .

Records available of
lobbying with civil
society partners .

OBJECTIVE ONE

Ensure all national and provincial legislation has been assessed from gender equality perspective,
that implementation of legislation for promoting and protecting gender equality is tracked and moni -
tored, and that women have made qualitative input in such processes.
ACTIVITY/PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATORS/ IMPACT TIMEFRAME DONE/NOT DONE
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OBJECTIVE TWO

The CGE develops a strategy to monitor and track compliance to the gender equality legis -
lation and policy framework by national, provincial and local government.

ACTIVITY/PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATORS/ IMPACT TIMEFRAME DONE/NOT DONE
Utilise the Gender Legal and Four departments  December The gender
Barometer to assess Research per province assessed . 2009. barometer tool was
the implementation     piloted in four
of gender     government
mainstreaming     departments.
and gender
budgeting in all
36 national
departments .

OBJECTIVE THREE

Actively engage the judiciary and legal sector to promote gender equality and improve the status of
women in the judicial system.

ACTIVITY/PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATORS/ IMPACT TIMEFRAME DONE/NOT DONE
Equality courts Legal Partnerships established Ongoing . Not done.
Partner with Civil (National    Pending the
Society Organisations and Relevant cases identified   programme of
(CSO), engage Provincial)    DOJCD
actively in current Opinions produced
cases with gender
implications to
analyse how these
cases impact on
gender equality;
both relevant legal
cases and protocols
followed for engaging
with these as amicus
curiae ;
Develop Opinions .

Partner with SAHRC Legal Partnership developed . January/ Done .
Monitoring of the (National Production of a  February
Equality Courts. and comprehensive 2009 .
Develop Provincial) report which describes
recommendations   the Equality Courts and
and table with    their impact on equality
DJOCD and Parliament . in South Africa.

Table the Report with
the Department of
Justice and Parliament .
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OBJECTIVE FOUR

Drawing on Employment Equity (EE) information from the Department of Labour, (DOL), the CGE uses
its full powers to review the policies and practices in business in the private sector, tertiary institutions
and statutory bodies in order to ensure compliance with the gender equality legislative and policy
framework.

ACTIVITY/PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATORS/ IMPACT TIMEFRAME DONE/NOT DONE
Work with DOL to Legal Increased compliance May 2009-  Not done .
develop strategies (National) with gender  March 2010 . Meetings were not
and mechanisms to  equality legislation   conveyed.
monitor  and policy in
implementation of  the private sector .
gender equality
legislation in the
private sector .

OBJECTIVE FIVE

Effective engagement with the media and advertising agencies with a view to enabling these institu -
tions to become more gender sensitive and to increase women’s representation with business and in  -
stitutions.

ACTIVITY/PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATORS/ IMPACT TIMEFRAME DONE/NOT DONE
Monitor the  Legal Complaints are laid May 2009-  Not done .
Advertising Standards (National against gender March 2010 . No complaints were
Authority (ASA) . and insensitive    received.
Make submissions Provincial) advertisements .
and manage
complaints.

OBJECTIVE SIX

The CGE and its strategic and civil society partners hold political parties representation accountable
to their election manifesto promises ; and challenge political parties to adopt a policy of 50/50 repre -
sentation of women in politics, including leadership positions, to ensure greater representation and ef -
fective participation of women.

ACTIVITY/PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATORS/ IMPACT TIMEFRAME DONE/NOT DONE
Receive and Legal Report produced . No cases were

investigate any (National   identified.
complaints and
concerning political Provincial)
parties and gender
equality, taking legal
action where
necessary .
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THEME FOUR
GENDER: CULTURE, RELIGION AND TRADITION

GOAL: The Commission evaluates the role South African cultures, religion and traditions play in
contributing towards gender inequality and works towards rectifying these inequalities ; and it puts in
place mechanisms for the ongoing monitoring of gender equality transformation.

OBJECTIVE ONE

Develop innovative campaign (s), in conjunction with civil society partners and, where appropriate,
government , to raise awareness among women and traditional leaders about the mandate of the
CGE, women’s rights and gender equality. Where applicable, adopts a targeted approach in terms of
rural and/or informal settlements with the CGE taking up legal tests to raise awareness further.

ACTIVITIES/ PROJECTS DEPARTMENTS INDICATOR/IMPACT TIMEFRAME DONE/NOT DONE

Traditional Courts Bill

Tracks the Traditional Legal CGE provides submission June 2009 –  Done .
Courts Bill and gives (National) to Parliament. March 2010 .
inputs to submissions  The submission should
to Parliament .  advocate for the

Traditional Courts Bill to
be gender sensitive and
protects the rights of
women living under
customary law .

Conducts one PEI, Legal 450 participants provide May-July Projected : 9
provincial dialogue and the CGE with their 2009. Actual : 2
per province on the Research opinions on the  Variance : 7.
implementation of the  Traditional Courts Bill
Traditional Courts Bill  and recommendations.
and produces a
report of each  Dialogue Report
meeting.  captures these

discussions and
recommendations.

Facilitates meetings Partnerships established May 2009 - Projected : 27
with national and and MOUs signed. March 2010. meetings
provincial traditional    Actual : 17
leaders to develop    Variance: 10.
working relationships Meetings held;
on gender matters. Minutes noted.

Complaints Legal Finalised complaints . Ongoing . Done.
administration and (National     224 complaints
management and     finalised.

Provincial) Increased number
of complaints .

Litigation on Legal Number of lodged Ongoing . No litigation was
Primogeniture/ (National  cases .    embarked upon .
Inheritance and

Provincial)
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OBJECTIVE THREE

The CGE, following the creation of a conducive environment as envisaged in Objective One above,
develops instruments and monitoring mechanisms for reviewing among others gender policies and
practices, women’s participation, representation and changes in institutional culture, attitudes and
perceptions in faith-based, traditional and cultural institutions.

ACTIVITIES/ PROJECTS DEPARTMENTS INDICATOR/IMPACT TIMEFRAME DONE/NOT DONE
Engage with SA Legal Laws repealed  May 2009 –  Not done .
Law Reform (National) and amended . March 2010 . Pending agreement
Commission to      with SA Law Reform.
repeal/amend Black
Administration Act 38
of 1927 and other
related legislation.
Parliamentary Officer
will direct the specific
legislation of CGE‘s
particular focus .

THEME 5
GENDER AND HIV/AIDS

GOAL: Noting that the South African government is a signatory to the 2001 UN Declaration of Commit -
ment on HIV/AIDS and has pledged to create multi-sectored strategies to reduce women’s and girls’ vul -
nerabilities to the pandemic, the Commission is to monitor and make recommendations on the
gendered responsive nature of existing HIV and AIDS legislation and programmes in terms of prevention,
care, treatment and support.

OBJECTIVE ONE

CGE assesses policy and implementation terms the extent to which the Broad Framework for HIV/AIDS
and Sexually Transmitted Infections (STI) Strategic Plan for South Africa 2007-2011 reduces both
women’s and girls’ vulnerability to HIV and AIDS.

ACTIVITIES/ PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATORS/IMPACT TIMEFRAME DONE/NOT DONE
Complaints  Legal Finalised complaints . Ongoing . Done.
administration and (National
management . and Increased number    439 complaints have

Provincial) of complaints . been managed;
21 5 to be carried
over to 2010/11 .
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THEME SIX
STRENGTHENING CONSTITUTIONAL DEMOCRACY AND GENDER MACHINERY

GOAL: According to its mandate , the Commission is tasked with the responsibility of monitoring, driving
and strengthening the National Gender Machinery (NGM) . This involves: monitoring the efficacy and
functioning of the NGM; monitoring South African government adherence and compliance with the pro -
visions of Beijing Platform of Action, CEDAW and the Protocol to the African and Peoples Rights on the
Rights of Women in Africa .

OBJECTIVE ONE

To improve the efficacy and impact of the NGM and delivery of gender equality.

ACTIVITY/PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATOR/IMPACT TIMEFRAME DONE/NOT DONE
National Policy  Legal CGE participation at Ongoing . Done –
Framework, CGE  (National National Committee   Meetings attended .
recommends that the submission led by Women’s Ministry.
policy framework informed by CGE attendance at
becomes an Act . Provincial meetings .

inputs) .

CEDAW project . All November
departments 2009
and
provinces .

Training to be All HOD’s , deputy   July 2009 . Done .
conducted for all directors, PC’s and
PC’s and officers on Officers understand
CEDAW and other CEDAW framework  ;
instruments . well informed staff .

Project planning for
CEDAW Working
Group (CWG)

Provincial Briefings Information obtained August - CWG established
through dialogue report, September Progress Project will

Field work within the reporting 2009 . be carried over
format as per CEDAW   to 2010/11 POA .

Interviews/Focus framework .
Groups Well informed

communities and
stakeholders .

Data capturing
and analysis

Conduct two
provincial dialogues
to obtain information
to feed into the
CEDAW Country
Report (one urban,
one rural)
Produce report
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BEIJING +15 : Legal Clustered database January 2010 . 1ST Phase Done,
Identify organisations (National of organisations . 2ND Phase
that deal with and in 2010/11 POA .
Beijing Platform Provincial)
for Action.

Ten critical areas of
concern with the
following being
specific focus areas:

1. Training to be
conducted for all
PC’s and officers
on Beijing and
other instruments .

2. Project planning
for Beijing Working
Group- BWG .

3. Provincial Briefings .
4. Field work .
5. Interviews/Focus

groups .
6. Data capturing

and Analysis .
7. Conduct one

national and two
provincial
dialogues

8. Report

Review SA reservations Legal/ Reservations removed . March 2010 . Ongoing .
as per the African Parliamentary
Union (AU) Protocol officer
on the Rights of
Women .

Engage the AU
Special Rapporteur
on Violence Against
Women and Special
Rapporteur on the
Rights of Women in
Africa .

4.4.6 PARLIAMENTARY OFFICER

4.4.6.1 OVERVIEW

This programme seeks to make an impact on the promotion, protection and development
of gender equality by engaging with policy and legislative initiatives at national and provin -
cial level in keeping with the strategic objectives of the Commission .

In addition to this, the Parliamentary Officer has sought to foster a close working relationship

OBJECTIVE ONE

To improve the efficacy and impact of the NGM and delivery of gender equality.

ACTIVITY/PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATOR/IMPACT TIMEFRAME DONE/NOT DONE
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with the relevant Portfolio Committees and the newly formed Ministry for Women, Children
and Persons with Disabilities to enhance and support the Commission’s interventions at the
policy and legislative levels .

The Parliamentary Officer has been liaising robustly with various portfolio committees and
has made submissions on key legislative instruments such as the Protection from Harassment
Bill, Recognition of Customary Marriages Amendment Bill and Draft Bill on Adult Prostitution.

4.4.6.2 SERVICE DELIVERY ACHIEVEMENTS

Programme Output Performance Actual Performance
/Service
Delivery
Indicators

Target Actual
Parliamentary Monitoring and At least one The Protocol to Partially done
Officer evaluation of Instrument to be the African Charter Initiatives have

international as identified and on Human and commenced ; this
well as regional evaluated . Peoples’  is a work in progress .
Treaty    Rights of Women in
Instruments .   Africa has been

identified .

Treaty body All known Treaty  Creation of database Partially done.
database . bodies to be collated . to commence Work in progress .

when department is
fully established .

International All relevant  Establishment of Partially done.
Human Rights Instruments and database containing Work in progress .
Instruments Agreements  international and
Database Applicable to SA regional instruments
relevant to to be collated . that is applicable to
gender equality . gender equality .

Submissions on  Number of Six Submissions . Done.
Draft Legislation . Submissions.   12 submissions

made to Parliament

Workshops and Number of workshop Three Workshops and Done.
seminars and seminars Presentations .

attended and /or
presentations made .

One CGE
presentation at
Parliament’s Launch
of the 2009 16 Days of
Activism Against
Violence on Women
and Children .

One CGE
presentation to
Department of Water
and Environmental
Affairs .
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One CGE
presentation to
Department
of Health .

One CGE Workshop
on Traditional Courts
Bill to uMhlatuze
Municipality .

One CGE Workshop
on Traditional Courts
Bill , in East London .

Evaluate Audit and evaluation Identify at least two  Done.
policies, of legislative focus areas,  Muslim Marriages Bill
instruments and instruments, policies instruments or policies has been identified
practices and practices which requiring intervention . as a prospective
requiring expressly or have a   Bill for the current
legislative potential to legislative
reform . discriminate on  programme.

the basis of gender .

CGE Act (1996) is in
the process of being
amended .

4.5 PROGRAMME: Public Education and Information

4.5.1 OVERVIEW
The Public Education and Information (PEI) Department achieved the strategic objectives of the
Commission through a series of interventions such as dialogues, seminars and information sessions.

Interventions are conducted through raising public awareness focusing within the strategic
framework and the National Programme of Action which was developed during this past year.
The interventions are planned and conducted within six themes as per the Strategic Plan
2008-2013 .

4.5.2 PURPOSE

• To foster an understanding of what gender equality means and to assist in the
development of institutional mechanisms to ensure that gender considerations are
systematically integrated into policies, programmes and everyday existence;

• To empower women to influence policy and become equal participants in, and
beneficiaries of, all areas of economic endeavour; and

• To ensure that women are equally represented and participate in all areas of political life
and relevant decision making.
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4.5.3 PRIMARY OBJECTIVES

• Develop, conduct or manage public education and information programmes for the
promotion of gender equality;

• Liaise and interact with organisations with the intent of promoting gender equality; and

• Foster an understanding of matters pertaining to the promotion of gender equality and
the role and activities of the Commission.

4.5.4 SERVICE DELIVERY ACHIEVEMENTS

The PEI Department achieved its objectives through a series of educational and outreach
activities such as dialogues, seminars, information sessions, collaborations and partnerships . These
interventions were conducted to raise awareness on issues relating to Gender and Poverty; GBV;
Gender, Culture, Religion and Traditional Practices; Gender and Good Governance; Gender and
HIV and AIDS and the National Gender Machinery.

Two working groups have been established to prepare reports on the country’s compliance
with the international instruments, namely the Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of
Discrimination Against Women (CEDAW) and the Beijing Declaration and Platform for Action.
The working groups comprise officers from the Research, Legal and PEI Departments. The two
reports will be available in the 2010/11 financial year.

While interventions were conducted throughout the year, specific activities were held during
South Africa’s 2009 elections. Both the national and provincial offices were engaged in monitoring
the build-up to the elections. In order to have observer status at polling stations, the Commission
had to apply for accreditation from the IEC which was granted. All departments were involved
in observing and monitoring the elections though this initiative was spearheaded by the PEI
Department.

The Gender Barometer tool was launched in October 2009. This was jointly arranged by the PEI
and Research and Communications Departments. This tool will be administered to government
departments to assess their compliance to gender mainstreaming. The responsibility of managing
the Gender Barometer tool lies with the Research Department.

During this period a national dialogue was convened on Women and the Elections. Eight political
parties were invited to account on their manifestos and their methodology ensuring that a 50/50
ratio of women in decision-making process will be achieved. This seminar was conducted in
collaboration with Genderlinks and Media Monitoring Africa. A dialogue report and, separately,
a monitoring report were produced, both of which were discussed at a meeting with the IEC.
The purpose of the meeting was twofold: firstly, to hand over the said reports and, secondly, to
establish partnerships on future activities.

The national office held a Women and the Media Dialogue during the month of October 2009.
This was a collaborative seminar with Media and Diversity Development Agency (MDDA) and
the South African Broadcasting Corporation (SABC).

Special events were also held during the 16 Days of Activism for No Violence Against Women
and Children, on World AIDS Day and on International Human Rights Day. Interventions during
these periods focused on the impact GBV has on the increased number of HIV infections as well
as increases in rape and sexual assault incidents. Special events were also held during these
events with interventions focused on men, masculinities and gender-based violence as well as
possible increase of violent incidents during the FIFA World Cup South Africa 2010™.
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The Commission was able to strengthen South Africa’s constitutional democracy by increasing
understanding of the gender-relevant legislative environment, as well as by enlarging stakeholder
access to existing mechanisms by attending both national and provincial gender machineries.

To further increase the sustainability of the work conducted through the Commission, the PEI
Department actively fostered partnerships with public-sector institutions and fellow Chapter 9
Institutions and Civil Society Organisations (CSOs ).

The Commission was able to bring together various groups, such as:

• Women’s groups and institutions;

• Bodies such as provincial AIDS Councils and NGOs;

• The House of Traditional Leaders;

• Government departments;

• Various sectors of the National Gender Machinery;

• Women in Agriculture and Rural Development;

• Gay, lesbian and inter-gendered organisations, CSOs; and

• Community-based organisations working with women’s issues – such as GBV, HIV and AIDS,
harmful traditional practices and human trafficking in relation to the 2010 FIFA World Cup
South Africa™ .

The Commission hosted a side-event (seminar) at the 54th Session of the Commission on the Status
of Women (CSW). The seminar took place on 8 March 2010. The topic for the seminar was Culture
and its Impact on Gender Equality.

Approximately 50 delegates attended the event. The event attracted ministers from different
countries and ambassadors to the United Nations.

4.5.4.1 SEMINARS AND EVENTS

The Eastern Cape office partnered with the South African Human Rights Commission and a
local NGO, Passion Unlimited Peers in Action (PUPA), to conduct a youth summit targeting
young people in Mdantsane; the theme centred on xenophobic attacks. The Commission
and the OPP were the lead partners in this initiative. The main objectives of the summit were
to:

• Introduce Chapter 9 and their mandate to the young people of Mdantsane;

• To provide youth with an opportunity to reflect on their attitudes towards non-nationals;

• To educate young people about human rights culture and the importance of
responsible citizenship; and

• To create opportunities for various stakeholders to network and share lessons learnt.

The activity was conducted over a two-day period commencing 30 March 2010. A good
turnout eventuated on both days: 62 young people on day one and 58 attendees on the
second day. The following Government departments attended the event: Department of
Correctional Services, SAPS, the South African Social Security Agency and the Department
of Justice and Constitutional Development (DOJCD) . CSOs present: United Nations High
Commissioners for Refugees (UNHCR), South African Women Lawyers Association and PUPA .
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The Mpumalanga office hosted a men’s seminar at White River on 26 November 2009
followed by a men’s march on 27 November 2009.

One of the key partners for the event was the SAPS. The purpose of the march was intended
to create awareness to leaders of the community, men in particular, to encourage them to
be part of the solution in the fight against violence against women and children abuse. The
objectives of the men’s seminar were:

• To gain commitment to the implementation of the emerging conference programme of
action through men’s involvement; and ,

• To acknowledge men’s activism against gender-based violence and encourage a more
concerted and multi-faceted activism, approach and education.

The Kwazulu-Natal office convened two dialogues in Bergville and Pietermaritzburg on
cultural practices and human rights.

Three practices discussed at the dialogues were virginity testing, ukuthwala and male
initiation. The dialogues discussed whether traditional practices still hold relevance and
whether these practices are indeed being undertaken within the ambit of culture. Also for
consideration: these traditional and/or cultural practices to take cognizance of the
Constitution and the Bill of Rights.

The Commission hosted one of the planned dialogues in Bergville on 29 September 2009 at
the Emazizini Tribal Court. The event was well organised by our Chapter 9 partner, the IEC;
members of the KZN Legislature attended the event. The United Nations Population Fund
(UNPFA) partnered with the Commission and made a positive contribution to the dialogue.

The KZN office spearheaded two pilot consultative workshops on Maternity Benefits for
Self-Employed Women. The workshops were held on 18 and 20 August 2009 in Stanger and
Durban respectively. A diverse group of working women gathered at both workshops to
dialogue and debate the issues with the campaign team and to deliberate on the policy
gap and the practical impact on working women. The envisaged outcomes of the
workshops were to:

• Obtain a broader understanding of the social issues impacting on working women in
relation to maternity benefits;

• Establish awareness amongst affected stakeholders of the discrimination inherent in cur -
rent policy approaches;

• Establish a clear need for a campaign and create the requisite ‘buy in’ from a broad
stakeholder group; and

• Elect a representative campaign committee to drive and be the face of the campaign.

The Eastern Cape office headed a consortium of the Commission, SAHRC, UNPFA, National
Prosecuting Authority (NPA) and OPP. The prime purpose of the established consortium
was the development of material that would be used in their interventions in fighting against
forced marriages, ukhutwala.

The Free State office conducted a dialogue on poverty and migration in the Mantsopa
Local Municipality which is situated next to the Lesotho border. This Municipality is classified
as an agricultural region because it supplies the country with maize. The area between
Lesotho and Free State border is not fenced which makes controlling of movements
impossible. The challenges faced by this Municipality are the following:
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• People moving from rural areas to Ladybrand as a large town seeking employment
opportunities;

• People moving  illegally from the neighbouring countries especially Lesotho and
others (Pakistan, Somalia, Nigeria, Mozambique) to settle where there seem to be better
opportunities of work, or,  where most people are employed and they can sell their
products easily. Additionally, such parties try to access services, for example, old age
grants and much sought after medical assistance;

• Lack of food security for farm workers as most farmers pay farm workers in kind by giving
them monthly maize and milk that will help them survive. Moving to the township results
in no provision, leading to malnutrition as there is little or no provision for food; and

There is an increase in unemployment which leads to increase in crime and HIV and AIDS.
It is a well established fact that women are breadwinners in most families. Often this leads
to resorting to prostitution in order to provide for their families. Not only women though as
young girls are also forced into prostitution by their mothers to provide for families. Infectious
diseases and unwanted pregnancies are a result which compounds the tragic social
problems still further.

4.5.4.2 TABULAR REPRESENTATION OF PROGRESS ON PERFORMANCE PER PROVINCE

THEME ACTIVITIES EC FS GP KZN LIM MP NC NW WC
GBV 8 8 8 7 9  6 3 9 5 8
Gender and Poverty 11 11 8 7 8  10 8 7 9 6

Gender Democracy 7 1 1 1 4  4 1 1 3 5
and Good
Governance

Gender Culture 7 6 5 5 6  4 2 5 4 4
Religion and
Tradition

Gender 4 2 2 1 2  2 2 1 0 1
HIV and AIDS

Strengthening 4 4 4 4 21 4 4 4 4 4
Constitutional
Democracy(NGM)

Total 41 32 28 25 33 30 20 27 25 24

4.5.4.3 SERVICE DELIVERY REPORTING FOR 2009/10

THEME 1
GENDER EQUALITY AND POVERTY

GOAL: Eradication of Poverty in South Africa

The Commission, in partnership with various stakeholders, monitors the standards of living and quality of
life of South African women, including female headed households, with the main aim of promoting job
creation, economic opportunities and balance dependence on social grants.
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The Commission uses access to land, water, sanitation and transport infrastructure as key entry points.

The Commission monitors, researches and educates around government strategies and programmes,
particularly at local levels, specifically aimed at poverty eradication.

The Commission makes annual submissions with recommendations to Parliament and key departments
in this regard.

OBJECTIVE TWO

CGE developed a gender sensitive tool, the Gender Barometer, to conduct objective assessments on
government ’s impact on poverty.

ACTIVITIES/ PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATORS/IMPACT TIMEFRAME PERFORMANCE
National Launch of Research, Political heads of 30 June 2009 . Launch took
the Gender Barometer PEI and Legal government   place in

(National and departments September 2009
Provincial) and key stakeholders Projected : 1

attend the launch and Actual : 1
concur on the need for Variance  : 0
the CGE Gender
Barometer.

A Concept Paper is PEI (National) All provincial officers July 2009 . Concept Paper on
developed which  and managers   poverty and
captures the CGE’s  received the  Concept   migration was
position on Migration  Paper and are   developed and
and its Impact on  well-versed on the   circulated to
Poverty   impact of migration   provinces .

on poverty .

Conduct one PEI (Provincial) Communities and August 2009 . Projected : 9
provincial dialogue  stakeholders understand   dialogues
per province on the connection between Actual : 6
“The Impact of  migration and poverty . Variance : 3
Migration on  Dialogue report
Increasing Poverty ”. produced .

Conduct a dialogue PEI (National Quality reports Sept 2009 . Projected : 9
on Migration and and per province   Actual : 6
the Impact on Provincial) produced:   Variance  : 3
Poverty . Informed communities .

OBJECTIVE THREE

Using the outcome of objective one, encourage the development and implementation of pilot gender
equality and poverty programmes aiming at improving access to key focal points in two of the
provinces. To monitor the achievements of such pilots, and encourage replication of successful aspects
in other provinces.

ACTIVITIES/ PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATORS/IMPACT TIMEFRAME PERFORMANCE
Conduct two PEI (National Criteria established September Projected : 18
dialogues with and Two quality reports 2009 . Actual : 10
CSOs on which Provincial) per province produced:   Variance  : 8
poverty reduction Informed communities .



57

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010

OBJECTIVE THREE

Using the outcome of objective one, encourage the development and implementation of pilot gender
equality and poverty programmes aiming at improving access to key focal points in two of the
provinces. To monitor the achievements of such pilots, and encourage replication of successful aspects
in other provinces.
ACTIVITIES/ PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATORS/IMPACT TIMEFRAME PERFORMANCE
strategies are
assessed in terms
of progress of
government ’s
poverty reduction
strategies that are
in place .

Establish partnerships PEI (National CGE is recognised by June- Projected : 27
with CSOs and NGOs and CSOs as the leader December (three per province)
dealing with poverty Provincial) in the area of gender 2009 . Actual : 25
and poverty reduction  and poverty .   Variance : 2
programmes .

Effective partnerships are
established with CSOs in
the selected provinces .

OBJECTIVE FOUR

CGE takes advantage of opportunities to collaborate with the National Treasury and Stats SA on their lon -
gitudinal research processes, with reviews to ensure that such studies take into account the impact of
poverty on the quality of life of women, including female -headed households. The outcomes of these
studies are used as a basis for developing appropriate strategic responses to poverty linked to gender
equality.

ACTIVITIES/PROJECTS DEPARTMENT INDICATORS/IMPACT TIMEFRAME PERFORMANCE

Develop Concept PEI (National) Provincial managers August 2009 . One Concept
Papers for provinces  and officers understand   Paper developed ;
on Millennium  the MDGs in relation   circulated to
Development  to poverty, provinces .
Goals (MDGs) poverty, land and sanitation.
land and water .

Popularise MDGs PEI (Provincial) Reports on activities September –  Projected 3 x 9 = 27
through:  conducted which will October 2009 . Actual : 16

assist research; result -  Variance : 11
One information  Informed communities .
session on access
to land per province .

One information
session on access to
water and sanitation
per province .

One dialogue on
how human trafficking
and migration
entrenches poverty .
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THEME TWO
GENDER-BASED VIOLENCE

GOAL: The Commission, cooperating with strategic partners, works towards the creation of a violence-
free society by significantly reducing GBV:

OBJECTIVE ONE

Ensure that the national legislative and policy frameworks comply with all international GBV instru -
ments/protocols to which the South African government is a signatory.

ACTIVITY/PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATORS/ IMPACT TIMEFRAME PERFORMANCE

Project: Human
Trafficking,
Migration and 2010

National dialogue on PEI Stakeholders attending July 2009 . Dialogue deferred to
the Implications of the  the national dialogue   May 2010, partnering
2010 FIFA World Cup  are informed about the   with NPA
South Africa™ on  Implications of the
Human Trafficking  2010 FIFA World Cup
and Migration  South Africa™
(Identification of a  on Human Trafficking
province where  and Migration
dialogue will be  National Dialogue
hosted) . Report .

Provide feedback at PEI (National) Stakeholders that CGE August 2009 . Letter was written to
national level through  met with are aware   LOC for request for
meetings with the   of human trafficking   meeting, no positive
Local Organising   implications and   response received .
Committee (LOC)   commit to prevention
on the implications   strategies .
and challenges 2010
brings to the country .

Sex work/ Sexual
exploitation
Conduct a national PEI (National) Involved stakeholders July-August Research paper
dialogue on the sex  are informed   2009 . on sex work providing
trafficking, sex work ,  about sex trafficking   CGE position not
from which   and sex work .    approved by Plenary,
implications and   National dialogue   hence dialogue
challenges arise   report produced .   could not take place .
within the context
of 2010 .

Convene meeting to PEI (National) Provide feedback August 2009 . Meeting with LOC
give qualitative  to the LOC.   did not materialise,
feedback to LOC     no response
and Parliament on      from LOC .
challenges and
implications of
sex workers .

Conduct provincial PEI (Provincial) 450 participants July-August Projected : 9
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dialogue centred understand tragic 2009 . Actual : 8
on subjects: human implications   Variance  :1
trafficking, sex work of trafficking and
and 2010 (50 persons sex work .
per province) .

OBJECTIVE TWO

Monitor enforcement of legislation seeking to address Gender-Based Violence and improvement of
effectiveness of service delivery.

ACTIVITY/PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATORS/ IMPACT TIMEFRAME PERFORMANCE

Three information PEI and Participants of the November – Projected : 9 x 3 = 27
sessions per province: Legal information session December Actual : 18
To promote awareness (Provincial) are informed and 2009 . Variance  : 9
and understanding of   motivated to take
GBV legislation and   action in their
mechanism for redress   communities .
to targeted
communities in all
nine provinces .
Specific focus on
Beijing, CEDAW
Karridene and
Kopanong
Declarations by
conducting three
information sessions
per province .

Gender training for PEI, Research Trained officers with a September Training on
officers on GBV and Legal sound GBV related 2009 . CEDAW conducted
legislation including (National) legislation and   in- house,
international and international 27 officers trained .
regional instruments and regional
and all other instruments, plus other
instruments relating instruments relating
to gender . to gender .

Conduct a provincial PEI (Provincial) 450 People are November - Projected : 9
dialogue with  knowledgeable December Actual : 8
stakeholders on the  about the incidents 2009 Variance : 1
possible increase in  of violence during
incidents of violence  2010 FIFA World Cup
during 2010 FIFA World South Africa™ .
Cup South Africa™ . Provincial dialogue

report produced .

One information PEI (Provincial) 450 People are November - Projected : 9
session per province  educated about Men, December Actual : 12
on Men, Masculinities Masculinities and GBV . 2009 . Variance : 3
and GBV (depending
on reports submitted
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and assessment of
those reports-
provinces will be
informed individually
on encompassing
provincial dynamics) ;
Target stakeholders
per province .

One information PEI (Provincial) 450 People are informed November- Projected : 9
session per province  on sexuality and December Actual : 7
on how incidents of sexual orientation . 2009 . Variance : 2
GBV are increased
through sexual
choices and sexual
orientation .
Target 50 stakeholders
per province .

Form partnerships Partnerships
with LGBTI and other formed .
GBV organisations .

One provincial PEI (Provincial) 450 People are informed September- Projected : 9
dialogue on GBV  on GBV related October Actual : 10
related incidents  incidents from a 2009 . Variance: 1
(encompass provincial provincial perspective .
dynamics) .
Target 50 stakeholders
per province .

THEME THREE
GENDER, DEMOCRACY AND GOOD GOVERNANCE

GOAL: In partnership with civil society and through improved frameworks and systems for monitoring,
evaluation and reporting, the Commission becomes the national authority on compliance to the gender
equality legislative and policy framework, gender mainstreaming and good practice.

OBJECTIVE THREE

Actively engage the judiciary and legal sector(s) to promote gender equality and improve the status
of women in the judicial system.

ACTIVITY/PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATORS/ IMPACT TIMEFRAME PERFORMANCE
Two provincial PEI and 50 Participants are January Projected : 18
information sessions Communic- informed reference 2009 . Actual : 5
on advocacy based ations the CGE cases and    Variance : 13
on outcomes of (Provincial) their implications .
the cases .

Information
Session
Reports .

OBJECTIVE TWO

Monitor enforcement of legislation seeking to address Gender-Based Violence and improvement of
effectiveness of service delivery.

ACTIVITY/PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATORS/ IMPACT TIMEFRAME PERFORMANCE
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OBJECTIVE FOUR

Drawing on EE information from the Department of Labour, the CGE uses its full powers to review the
policies and practices in business in the private sector, tertiary institutions and statutory bodies in order
to ensure compliance with the gender equality legislative and policy framework.

ACTIVITY/PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATORS/ IMPACT TIMEFRAME PERFORMANCE

Launch of the PEI, Research Research report on July 2009. The Report was not
Employment and Gender Equality  launched but was
Equity Report Communic- Compliance  presented to the
(national) ation   Commission for

(National) Employment Equity
(CEE).

Distributed to
stakeholders .

CGE held a meeting
Launch attended by with CEE in
critical stakeholders . March 2010.

Conduct one  PEI and 450 Participants are July-August Projected: 9
provincial roundtable Research Informed about 2009 . Actual : 2
per province on the (Provincial) EE policies and   Variance : 7
EE Report and its   become advocates
recommendations .  for EE policies .

OBJECTIVE FIVE

Effective engagement with the media and advertising agencies with a view to enabling these institutions
to become more gender sensitive and to increase women’s representation with business and
institutions.

ACTIVITY/PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATORS/ IMPACT TIMEFRAME PERFORMANCE

Conduct a national PEI and Feedback provided . August- Projected : 1
dialogue on Women Research   September Actual : 1
and the Media (National)   2009 . Variance : 0
(link to 2010 project) –      This activity was a
partner with Informed stakeholders collaborative
appropriate  and communities . function with CGE,
stakeholders .   MDDA and SABC .

Conduct one PEI and 450 Participants are October- Projected : 9
provincial dialogue Research educated about November Actual : 1
per province on (Provincial) gender sensitive media  2009.  Variance : 8
Women and the and are empowered KZ-N held the
Media (link to 2010 to act against dialogue.
project) . sexist reporting.
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OBJECTIVE SIX

The CGE and its strategic and civil society partners hold political parties representation accountable to
their election manifesto promises and challenge political parties to adopt a policy of 50/50 representa -
tion of women in politics, including leadership positions, to ensure greater representation and effective
participation of women.

ACTIVITY/PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATORS/ IMPACT TIMEFRAME PERORMANCE

Election campaign
National dialogue on PEI and Report on national  April 2009 . Projected : 1
accountability to Research dialogue produced .   Actual : 1
party manifestos . (National) Commitments made   Report was

by political parties to produced .
gender equity are
monitored and
followed-up .

Monitor national PEI and National Elections April 2009 . Projected : 9
elections and compile Research Report produced .   monitoring reports
report in conjunction (National Distributed to relevant   Actual : 9
with CSO partners. and stakeholders and    Variance : 0
Launch of report on Provincial) political parties .
dialogue and
monitoring, engage
with IEC and parties
on findings ; raise
awareness on
party pledges .

THEME FOUR
GENDER: CULTURE, RELIGION AND TRADITION

GOAL: The Commission evaluates the role South African cultures, religion and traditions play in con -
tributing towards gender inequality and works towards rectifying these inequalities and put in place
mechanisms for the ongoing monitoring of gender equality transformation.

OBJECTIVE ONE

Develop innovative campaign(s), in conjunction with civil society partners and where appropriate,
government, to raise awareness among women and traditional leaders about the mandate of the
CGE, women’s rights and gender equality. Where applicable, adopt a targeted approach in terms of
rural and/or informal settlements with the CGE taking up legal tests to further raise awareness.

ACTIVITIES/ PROJECTS DEPARTMENTS INDICATOR/IMPACT TIMEFRAME PERFORMANCE

Traditional Courts Bill

Conduct one PEI, Legal 450 Participants provide May-July Projected : 9
provincial dialogue and the CGE with their 2009. Actual : 2
per province on the  Research  opinion on the   Variance : 7
implementation of  (Provincial)  Traditional Courts Bill
the Traditional     and recommendations
Courts Bill and
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produce a report of  Dialogue Report
each meeting.  captures these
Facilitate meetings PEI (National discussions and
with national and and recommendations.
provincial traditional Provincial)
leaders to develop
working relationships
on gender matters.

Partnerships established May 2009 - Projected : 27
and MOUs signed. March 2010. meetings

Actual : 17
Meetings held Variance : 10
Minutes noted.

Issue Based
Information Sessions
One information PEI (Provincial) 450 Participants are June-July Projected : 9
session per province  knowledgeable 2009 . Actual : 13
on Customary and about the current state Variance : 4
Religious Marriages on Customary and
with stakeholders who Religious Marriages and
are involved in  are empowered
customary and  to make submissions
religious marriages . to Parliament .

One information PEI (Provincial) 450 Participants are August- Projected : 9
session per province  knowledgeable September Actual : 3
on initiation, initiation  about the current state 2009 . Variance : 6
schools and Female  on initiations and FGM,
Genital Mutilation  and are empowered
(FGM) .  to make submissions

to Parliament and
relevant stakeholders .

Two information PEI (Provincial) 900 Participants are January-  Projected : 18
sessions per province  knowledgeable March 2009 . Actual : 6
on virginity testing  about virginity    Variance : 12
and other cultural    testing and are
practices empowered to make
(develop partners to submissions to
aid with expert Parliament and
knowledge) . relevant stakeholders .

OBJECTIVE ONE

Develop innovative campaign(s), in conjunction with civil society partners and where appropriate,
government, to raise awareness among women and traditional leaders about the mandate of the
CGE, women’s rights and gender equality. Where applicable, adopt a targeted approach in terms of
rural and/or informal settlements with the CGE taking up legal tests to further raise awareness.

ACTIVITIES/ PROJECTS DEPARTMENTS INDICATOR/IMPACT TIMEFRAME PERFORMANCE
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OBJECTIVE TWO

To engage the religious sector, civil society organisation, faith based organisations, traditional leaders
and traditional healers to develop a strategy to change gender perceptions, increase women’s repre -
sentation and become more gender sensitive in implementing their respective mandates.

ACTIVITIES/ PROJECTS DEPARTMENTS INDICATORS/ IMPACT TIMEFRAME PREFORMANCE
Conduct two PEI and 900 traditional leaders January- Projected : 18
consultative dialogues Research and traditional March 2009 Actual : 0
per province on (Provincial) healers are conscious  Variance : 18
gender related issues  on gender equity and
with traditional leaders  women’s rights.
and traditional
healers .

THEME 5
GENDER AND HIV AND AIDS

GOAL: Noting that the South African government is a signatory to the 2001 UN Declaration of Commit -
ment on HIV and AIDS and has pledged to create multi-sectoral strategies to reduce women’s and girls’
vulnerabilities to the pandemic, the Commission is to monitor and make recommendations on the gen -
dered responsive nature of existing HIV and AIDS legislation and programmes in terms of prevention,
care, treatment and support.

OBJECTIVE ONE

CGE assesses in policy and implementation terms the extent to which the Broad Framework for HIV and
AIDS and STI Strategic Plan for South Africa 2007-2011 reduces women’s and the girls’ vulnerability to
HIV/AIDS.

ACTIVITIES/ PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATORS/IMPACT TIMEFRAME PERFORMANCE

Conduct one PEI (Provincial) Informed stakeholders November- Projected : 9
consultative   and communities . December Actual : 5
provincial dialogue Target 50 attendees 2009. Variance : 4
on the UNDPF/CGE per province .
pledge, focus on
care and support
and the equal burden
of care and support.

Conduct one PEI (Provincial) Informed communities November- Projected : 9
provincial dialogue   and stakeholders. December Actual : 0
on : “How GBV    2009. Variance : 9
impacts on the
increased numbers
of HIV infections” Report produced.
during the 16 Days of
Activism Against
Violence
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OBJECTIVE TWO

The CGE develops a strategy for ensuring that work undertaken by theme committees and programmes
at both national and provincial levels have been reviewed from an HIV/AIDS gendered perspective .

ACTIVITY/PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATOR/IMPACT TIMEFRAME ACTUAL PERFORMANCE
All departments to All Reviewed material, March 2010. All information printed
review and amend departments gender mainstreamed  has been
(where necessary) (National materials produced.  mainstreamed.
all materials, activities and
and projects to make Provincial)
sure gender is
mainstreamed.

Material development All Materials developed, May 2009 – Three pamphlets
for all thematic areas departments printed and produced. March 2010. have been produced.
Provinces to input into (National Materials translated These have not been
material and into South Africa’s translated into
development. Provincial) 10 other official South Africa’s other

languages . official languages.

Pamphlets have been
distributed to nine
provinces for
dissemination to
communities and
stakeholders.

THEME SIX
STRENGTHENING CONSTITUTIONAL DEMOCRACY AND GENDER MACHINERY

GOAL: According to its mandate, the Commission is tasked with the responsibility of monitoring, driving
and strengthening the NGM. To monitor the efficacy and functioning of the NGM. To monitor South
African government adherence and compliance with the provisions of Beijing Platform of Action, CEDAW
and the Protocol of African and Peoples’ Rights.

OBJECTIVE ONE

To improve the efficacy and impact of the NGM and delivery of gender equality.

ACTIVITY/PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATOR/IMPACT TIMEFRAME ACTUAL PERFORMANCE
CEDAW project

Training to be  Research,  All PC’s and Officers June 2009 .  27 officers have
conducted for all Legal and are conversant    been trained
PC’s and officers on PEI (National with CEDAW .    on CEDAW .
CEDAW and other and Well informed staff .
instruments . Provincial)

Conduct two PEI (National Information obtained  June- Projected : 18
provincial dialogues and through dialogue report . July 2009 Actual : 9
to obtain information Provincial)  Well informed    Variance : 9
to feed into the     communities and
CEDAW country stakeholders .
report (one urban,
one rural) .
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OBJECTIVE TWO

To improve the efficacy and impact of Chapter 9 Institutions in strengthening constitutional democracy
without compromising the CGE’s gender equality mandate.

ACTIVITY/PROJECT DEPARTMENT INDICATOR/IMPACT TIMEFRAME ACTUAL PERFORMANCE
Increased partnering All Chapter 9 Institutions Ongoing/  26 meetings were
with Chapter 9s . departments working in partnerships Needs basis . held with Chapter 9s

(National and conducting to establish and
and programmes in foster partnerships.
Provincial) partnerships.

Sign and agree on
MOUs that are project
based - depicting
clear roles
responsibilities
identifying areas of
collaboration
(potential cost sharing
and participation in
advocacy efforts) .

Establish working
relationships with
Chapter 9s fostered .

4.6 PROGRAMME: Research and Policy

4.6.1 OVERVIEW

The Research Department conducts research and makes recommendations to Parliament and other
authorities as detailed in the Commission on Gender Equality Act 39 of 1996. The Research Department
informs and supports the objectives of the Commission, notably with regard to:

• Monitoring of all organs of society to ensure that gender equality is respected, protected,
developed and attained;

• Assessing legislation from a gender perspective;
• Monitoring South Africa’s progress towards the attainment of gender equality and compliance

with international norms; and
• Liaising and interacting with institutions, bodies or authorities and with civil society, to promote

gender equality.

4.6.2 PRIMARY OBJECTIVES

In order to fulfil the mandate of the Commission in terms of the promotion and protection of gender
equality, the Research Department is committed to pursuing the following primary objective: to be
effective in terms of the promotion and protection of gender equality by:

• Tracking, documenting and analysing relevant literature, policies and reports relevant to the
mandate of the Commission and its research programmes;

• Planning and developing research programmes, concept papers, research proposals, project
designs and information to advance programmes and processes of the Commission ;
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• Monitoring and evaluating transformation of gender relations with reference to: political,
economic and social power; institutions, sectors and services; disadvantaged individuals,
communities and social groups and unfair discriminatory practices; and active measures to
promote gender equality and redress persistent disparities;

• Reporting on gender analysis, developing evidence-based recommendations and providing
input into practice, policy, budgeting, advocacy, awareness raising, public education and
law reform in the public and private sectors to promote, protect and attain gender equality;
and

• Creating strategic linkages with researchers and research institutions nationally, regionally and
internationally to ensure effective collaboration, critical review and development of gender
research capacity, discourse and frameworks.

4.6.3 SERVICE DELIVERY ACHIEVEMENTS

In an effort to contribute to the overall policy and legislative framework and access to justice, the
Commission has, through its participation with CSOs , such as Molo Songololo, deliberated in debates
around human trafficking and developed a position paper on the issues and approaches referencing
human trafficking and sex work. In the Free State, for example, focus was on developing policy on
curbing the porous border between Lesotho and the Free State , and , strategies to achieve same - given
that the majority of the immigrants are women and children.

In terms of monitoring and evaluating responses to reduce GBV, a report on the Victims Charter was
launched both at national and provincial levels to the interdepartmental and provincial committees on
the Victims Charter.

The main aim of this study was to assess whether police stations and the courts possess the necessary
legal and administrative structures conducive to the realisation of the rights of victims as specified in
the Victims Charter.

The target audience comprised largely of the courts and police stations in provinces (excluded national
- a limitation of the study).

Achievements included: the production of a report on the Implementation of the Victims Charter in the
DOJCD and the SAPS .

The Victims Charter Report was launched during the month of November 2009 at all these fora,
provincially and nationally; and the Department of Justice has sent an acknowledgement and a written
response clarifying gaps to the Research Department.

All the police stations and courts that participated in the study received copies of the Report. So too
did various libraries in compliance with the Legal Depository Act.

The Research Department has produced a Sex Work Concept Paper which aims at showing the
seamlessness between human trafficking and sex work. This will assist the Commission to take a position
on how to deal with the social issues relating to sex work.

With regard to participation in government, public sector programmes and service delivery , the
Gauteng office has, for example, held meetings with the Gauteng Legislature with the purpose of build -
ing relationships with Chapter 9 institutions and government departments.

The Gender Barometer: The Commission launched the Gender Barometer Report on the 13 October
2009.

The aim of the study was the development of a monitoring and evaluation system, known as the Gender
Barometer to assess both the government and private sector’s response to gender mainstreaming and
gender budgeting.

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010
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The target audience of this system is currently government departments (national, provincial and local).
This new system or instrument, as it is viewed, should be administered to the Head of Department; the
Office of the Political Head; the Gender Focal Person; Finance Head and/or the Human Resources
Manager.

Indicators were developed measuring amongst others, the following areas:
• Creating an enabling environment: awareness of compliance obligations; organisational

culture and values; policy and decision-making processes; human and financial resources;
• Gender Transformation Enabling Mechanisms: policy analysis tools; capacity building;

management information systems and performance appraisals;
• Integrating gender impact considerations in programmes and projects: EE HR practices; skills

development; procurement and interdepartmental relations; and
• Supporting Gender Transformation through Business Systems: institutional mechanisms; M&E

systems; policy review and reporting.

The second section of the Gender Barometer consists of a web-based Gender Barometer tool.
Participants were sensitised regarding this tool and were informed about its utility, namely to highlight pol-
icy gaps and challenges in respect of integrating gender mainstreaming in national and provincial de -
partments to the decision-makers.

A report tabling the proceedings of the day was developed by the Head Office staff. At the launch it
was agreed that the Gender Barometer was a useful tool for monitoring gender compliance by
departments. However, it was seen as a complicated instrument that required ’heads of government
departments’ commitment to delegate senior departmental officials to complete all documentary
requirements accurately. This task should not be relegated to gender focal persons.

Hard copies of the Gender Barometer were issued to all national government departments.

The Research Department has subsequently developed an action plan on the roll out of the
Gender Barometer System. It held information sharing sessions with 15 government departments to
demonstrate completion of the web-based Gender Barometer tool. These departments are in the
process of collecting information for issue to the Commission. All Commission officials and commissioners
have been trained on the use of the Gender Barometer.

The Research Department has also interacted with the civil society in various ways.

April 2009 Elections: The Commission participated in the evaluation of the April 2009 national and
provincial democratic elections and produced a report entitled Monitoring of the Elections 2009. The
aim of the study was to obtain an overview of the electorate’s perception about the national and
provincial elections, and their aspirations beyond the elections.

The Commission had formed a Gender and Elections Consortium with CSOs such as Women’s Net,
Genderlinks, Media Monitoring Africa (MMA) and the South African Council of Churches (SACC) in terms
of collecting data from the polling stations. The research findings of this report were presented to the IEC
on 15 October 2009. It was agreed that the Commission and the IEC should create strong linkages and
plan collaboratively for the 2011 local government elections.

Gender and the Media: On 19 October 2009, the Research Department in collaboration with the
Communications Department hosted the Media Dialogue on Gender and the Media in partnership with
Media Development Diversity Agency (MDDA), the Independent Communications Authority of South
Africa (ICASA), SAHRC and the SABC.
The aim of the dialogue was to enable the media and advertising agencies to become more
gender-sensitive and to increase women’s representation within business and institutions.

The exchange touched on issues of representation of women in newsrooms in terms of leadership and
the use of women journalists as sources of stories. Also of importance was an improvement of coverage
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of gender equality issues throughout the year and not necessarily solely during Women’s Month (August)
and the 16 Days of Activism. The partners agreed that the dialogue would be an annual event and
proposed, amongst others, the formation of a Media Transformation Charter which would assign and
underpin media compliance with the legal international, national and regional provisions that
South Africa has ratified. The partners have released a report termed Transformation Gender and Media
Seminar Proceedings .

The Commission conducted a study on Gender in the Private Sector. Reports have been launched in
each provincial office.

Gender and Land Study : the Research Department has completed the Gender and Land Baseline Study
Project, a study that was rolled over from the 2008/09 financial year. The aim of the study was to assess
the extent to which the land reform policy and implementation programme has incorporated gender
interest both at policy level and in implementation practice between the period 2006 to 2009. The
participating government departments were Land and Rural Development, and, Agriculture, Fisheries
and Forestry. The study was completed and then disseminated to stakeholders in July 2010.

Provincial researchers have participated in numerous activities with CSOs. The Mpumalanga and North
West provincial offices have, for instance, initiated meetings with the House of Traditional Leaders: the
major purpose: to establish a working relationship in dealing with gender issues. This relationship in
Mpumalanga has resulted in a proposal to sign a Memorandum of Understanding on best approach to
gender and cultural matters. The Commission appreciates this initiative as it is the custodian of culture
and, because the Commission questions cultural norms, the members perceive it as a considerable
threat.

The North West Province has identified ten key priority areas of which gender equity issues is one.
The Commission researcher has been tasked to popularise the Commission’s previous research findings
to this forum. The researcher has also established partnerships with the University of North West (Mafikeng
campus: Department of Development Studies) to ascertain potential yet key research areas for students.

Provinces such as Kwa-Zulu Natal Eastern Cape and Mpumalanga attended Men’s Indabas/Summits
where males are encouraged to participate in discussions around gender issues. In Mpumalanga, the
Commission has also joined forces with the SAPS by participating in initiatives of sensitising learners about
human trafficking taking place in the area.

The Widowhood Study was completed in 2008, however based on the type of cases that come to
offices nationwide regarding widowhood, most offices respond to the plight by continuously sensitising
NGOs, CBOs and FBOs about the needs and plight of:

• Widows
• The elderly; and
• People affected by HIV and AIDS.
• A main feature of the education focuses on issues around succession, inheritance and

registration of marriages.

All provinces continuously use the “The Impact of HIV and AIDS on Grandparent-Headed Households”
research report on HIV and AIDS to identify and make participants aware of discriminatory practices,
customs and beliefs in respect of widows, elderly, People Living with HIV and AIDS (PLWHA) and assist to
carve ways in eradicating same.

The Free State researcher has, for example, held discussions with the SACC, HIV and AIDS NGO’s and the
Health Department to discuss the shortage of anti -retrovirals at public hospitals discovering that the
Province did not have a well-managed database of the actual number of people who are diagnosed
to be living with HIV and AIDS.

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010
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In Mpumalanga , a meeting was held with the Home-Based Care Organisations with the intention of
establishing the extent to which they are supported in the work they undertake for communities, as most
of the care-work is undertaken by women. The meeting revealed that the level of support is very low;
for instance, care-givers do not receive any form of training on how to deal with HIV and AIDS. Second
example: the men in the Province had poor knowledge about the disease due to the high illiteracy
rates; compounding the problem further is their resistance to use condoms.

4.6.4 REVIEW OF RESEARCH AND POLICY SERVICE DELIVERY

Limitations: Limited human resource capacity has been a major impediment towards the delivery of
projects in that each province is staffed with one researcher who is required to cover a range of projects
within specified time-frames. This staff shortage makes it difficult for researchers to cover the vast South
African landscape and to sustain progress that has been achieved with regard to fulfilling the mandate
of the Commission.

An illustration of the impact: the Gauteng Province has been operating with a temporary researcher
since October 2009, and was only able to conduct the Victims Charter Study with the DOJ and the
SAPS. This vacancy was filled through the transfer of the Limpopo researcher in March 2010. The Limpopo
office vacancy has been advertised. The temporary researcher who was based in Head Office has
resigned which has compounded matters. This has serious implementation repercussions, especially
with regard to policy work. The post will be filled subject to the appointment of the Head of Department:
Research.

The Resource Centre acts as a point of contact for information for researchers, commissioners, staff
and the government. The Centre also acts as a point of contact for NGO’s, media and the general
community who may need information on gender issues.

The Centre receives many telephone and email enquiries from individuals and organisations that require
information on a myriad of issues related to gender. Where the Centre cannot assist, these enquiries
are referred to other organisations that would be in a position to provide guidance. The Commission’s
enquiry service also entertains readers, researchers and academics for their subject related information
requirements.

The Centre has further developed a Collection Development Policy, Circulation Policy and a Records
Management Policy. On the agenda of the Commission’s Centre is the purchasing of new library stock
to be used by all Commission Departments and the public. A list of all Commission publications in the
Resource Centre is available on the Commission’s Website Resource Centre menu.

For the year under review the following activities have taken place :

• Attendance of the Human Trafficking workshop organised by the SACC in Orlando East,
Soweto;

• Attendance of the City of Johannesburg workshop on Gender Transformation in the
Workplace ;

• Administration and management of all incoming cgeinfo@cge.org.za email correspondence;
• Referral of domestic violence and sexual harassment cases to the relevant departments

(Legal) where appropriate ;
• Proactively gathering online information to support the key thematic areas, as well as to

emergent areas such as the FIFA World Cup South Africa 2010™ project;
• Distributing Commission correspondence on the Gender Barometer to Director-Generals re -

garding the information session on the 16 March 2010. 374 Copies of the Gender Barometer
Research Report have been issued to stakeholders (this includes Commissioners, researchers
and National Departments);

• Disseminating the Victims Charter reports to the legal depositories in compliance with Section
2 of the Legal Deposit Act No.54 of 1997; all the police stations that took part in the Victims
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Charter research and to the interdepartmental committee members, the DOJCD regional
offices and Regional Court presidents ;

• Liaison with the National Library of South Africa (Legal Deposit Compliance Unit) on the
clarification of submitting published Commission reports and the updating of International
Standard Book Numbers (ISBNs );

• Liaison with legal depositories and official publications depository centres on outstanding
Commission documents to be submitted (Annual Reports 2007/08 and 2008/09); and

• Photocopying and binding copied material (where necessary) for the Research Department
and Resource Centre.

4.6.5 SERVICE DELIVERY REPORTING FOR 2009/10

The Research Department was able to complete all its target projects (as outlined below) :

Thematic Area Output Deliverables Planned Target

Gender-Based
Violence (GBV)

Ensure that the national Sex Work  Literature review  Completed .
legislative and policy Concept Paper . conducted, position
frameworks comply Literature review. not developed .
with all international
GBV instruments/
protocols to which
the South African
government is a
signatory .

Poverty Land distribution/
socio-economic
rights access

The CGE, in collaboration Identify key cases on Data collected in Study completed .
with strategic partners, access to land, water, 10 offices (one Report produced
continues to develop a sanitation, transport, national and To be discussed with
clear conceptual food and employment ; nine provincial); stakeholders
framework for its gender initiate litigation to analysed and in the Department
equality and poverty establish case law. produced of Rural Development ;
focus-defining possible  a report on a Department of Land Reform;
entries ; monitoring points  Gendered Department of Agriculture
of government poverty  Analysis of Land and Department of Forestry .
reduction policies, Reform Policy
strategies and and Implementation
programmes . outcome in

South Africa .

To assess the gendered Report has been
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Thematic Area Output Deliverables Planned Target

impact of poverty on peer-reviewed .
the quality of life of poor It is in the editing,
women including  formatting and
female headed print phase .
households .

To be cognizant of the
effects of various poverty
programmes on global
climate change and
biodiversity.

The CGE will develop
gender sensitive tools
of assessment.

Culture, religion and
tradition

Develop innovative Concept Paper  Concept Paper Concept Paper completed .
campaign(s) in development .  focusing on This content will guide
conjunction with civil    Ukuthwala; implementation on
society partners and    Virginity Testing and campaigns .
where appropriate, Further literature  Female Genital
government; so to raise reviews undertaken to Mutilation .
awareness among strengthen debates
women and traditional around the concepts .
leaders about the
mandate of the CGE,
women’s rights and
gender equality.

Where applicable, Traditional courts Provincial Engagement with the
adopt a targeted desk top study on engagement with Traditional House and
approach in terms of best practice,   traditional leaders, signing of MOU .
rural and/or informal international   e.g. Mpumalanga .
settlements with the conventions etc  .
CGE taking up legal to produce
test to further raise research report .
awareness .

HIV and AIDS Assessment of SA
policy and
implementation

CGE assesses policy and Literature and desktop Literature reviews National HIV and
implementation terms,  research review on undertaken and STI Study completed .
the extent to which the  international and  production of a
Broad Framework for HIV , regional conventions, research report Six provincial studies
AIDS and STI Strategic  national and   which will be completed .
Plan for South Africa  provincial HIV ,  shared with the A gendered analysis of
2007-2011 reduces  AIDS and STI plans . Department national and provincial
women’s and girls’  Develop gender  of Health . HIV , AIDS and STI plans 2009 .
vulnerability to HIV analysis and
and AIDS . recommendations .
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Thematic Area Output Deliverables Planned Target

Democracy and Good Employment Equity
Governance (D &GG)

The CGE devises a Complete Gender Study finalised  . Study discussed with
strategy and puts Equity in the Private Report edited . Employment Equity
infrastructure and civil Sector 2008 .    Commission and private
society networks in sector companies
place to increasingly (stakeholders) who
monitor and track participated in the study .
compliance with the
gender equality
legislative framework
by national, provincial
and local governments.

The CGE develops a Gender Barometer Launch of the Web-based Gender
gender sensitive tool, report and web- Gender Barometer Barometer tool is utilised
the Gender Barometer, based tool . with national by government departments .
to assess the   government
implementation of  institutions .
gender mainstreaming
and gender budgeting .

Information sessions
held with a sample
of 15 government
departments
identified to
participate in the
pilot project.

The CGE and its Monitor the 2009 Tools developed . Report completed -
strategic civil society national and    entitled “2009 National
partners held political provincial elections Monitoring of  Monitoring Report“.
parties accountable to  elections has  Shared with the IEC .
their election manifesto  taken place .
promises . Said
organisations Study completed The content of the Report
challenged political in all provinces  was discussed with the IEC .
parties to adopt a policy of the Republic
of 50/50 representation of South Africa .
of women in politics ,
including leadership
positions. This was
to strive for greater
representation and
increased effective
participation of women .

The CGE effectively Gender and Media Collaboration Seminar report produced:
engages with the Dialogue between CGE Transformation, Gender
media and advertising   and MDDA, and the Media Dialogue .
agencies . This is with a    SAHRC, SABC  Seminar proceedings .
view to enable these   and ICASA  .
institutions to become
more gender sensitive
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and to increase
women’s representation
in the business world
and institutions .

4.7 PROGRAMME: Information Technology

4.7.1 OVERVIEW

In today’s complex and ever changing world, the interdependence of business operations and
technology becomes more important than ever. As a result the Commission undertook an Information
Technology (IT) audit process to assess areas of concern, such as : IT governance, compliance or
adherence to IT policies and re-alignment of the departmental Plan of Action to meet the Commission’s
strategic objectives.

The Commission has embarked on a domain transfer to have a more efficient, effective and cost
effective hosting of  the Commission domain. The IT Department also reviewed Service Level
Agreements (SLAs) and contracts to pave way for new planned projects, set time -lines and goals to
improve IT resources, countrywide.

4.7.2 PURPOSE

To drive Commission operations, management revised its IT communication infrastructure in order to
enable the CGE to fulfil its constitutional mandate through reliable network infrastructure, mailing
facilities, audio visual equipment, office automation and providing state of the art desktop support and
server administration.

4.7.3 PRIMARY OBJECTIVES

• To provide the Commission’s operations with Server and Desktop support and maintenance;
• To host effective and efficient network infrastructure; and
• To implement consistent and reliable office automation.

4.7.4 SERVICE DELIVERY ACHIEVEMENTS

The IT Department continues to provide internal support to the Commission’s staff. The Department
conducted training to administrators on the basic trouble shooting mechanisms to ease the load on IT
administration.

The current Trend Micro antivirus contract expired. The IT Department rolled out Sophos antivirus to all
work stations on a trial basis while evaluating products such as E-scan, Kaspersky, F-secure and Sophos.

Thematic Area Output Deliverables Planned Target



75

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010

The Commission’s two office leases expired and both offices relocated to new sites. This necessitated
new data lines installations, relocation of PABX boxes for the switchboard and installation of workstations
to both sites.

Panasonic contracts recently expired and the office is currently busy replacing the Panasonic
switchboard with Telkom managed switchboards across all offices. The process commenced at Head
Office , with provincial offices to follow . IT incorporated first line mail filtering at ISP level using Smarthost
and Mailgate solutions to reduce spam, unnecessary overload on the data line and filtering of inbound
and outbound mail.

The domain transfer was completed successfully and registered with our ISP for hosting facility and
management.

The iburst router at the Gauteng office was terminated and inter-branch connectivity via VPN solution
was implemented. The IT Department also implemented a dedicated desktop in the HR office to run the
VIP payroll system in an effort to protect Commission data and ensure continuity.

IT also reconfigured the ISA firewall to enable EFT Java Applet to access the Secure Bank Site for financial
transactions.

Objectives Activity Output Performance Status Actual Performance
Indicators

Implementation Document  Reduced overhead Implemented All CGE staff members
of the fax to management cost .  are assigned a unique
email facility and archiving .    fax to mail number .

Domain Transfer Hosting of the Reliable management Implemented Domain Transfer
CGE domain . of the CGE domain .  was completed ..

MailGate / Monitoring of First line email filtering Implemented Automated email
Smarthost Solution inbound and solution to  filtering solution

outbound email . reduce spam . reduces 90 % of
spam before
reaching internal
network .

VPN Solution Reliable internet Interbranch network Implemented Terminated
service connectivity  Frame Relay .

to share resources .

Help Desk Software Call logging Call logging system In Progress Manual system
system and initiated and   in place .
management documented .
reporting .

Sophos Improved Updated scan Implemented IT reviewed
AntiVirus(AV) Security . engine and virus free  several anti-virus

environment . products .

VIP Softline Updated  Ease of use and  Implemented Installation was
Electronic  improved functionality .  successfully updated
Payroll System .     and documented .
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4.8 PROGRAMME: Communications

4.8.1 OVERVIEW

In the year 2009/10 , an integrated Marketing-Communications Strategy for the Commission - that utilises
all Commission platforms to promote a consistent and uniform message to all stakeholders - was devised
and used to maximise outreach .

The objectives in terms of developing this strategy are to:

• Recognise common understandings;
• Classify target audiences, their current and desired perceptions;
• Identify existing strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats in the organisation;
• Key objectives that handle these issues with a communication emphasis; and
• Formalise timeframes and benchmarks for evaluation of success , not only for communications

per se , but also the organisation as a whole.

Television, radio and print media were effectively utilised to promote the programmes and projects of
the Commission, notably by means of media briefings and media-press statements.

The Commission has adopted a proactive approach with the media. The Communications Department
continued to publicise the work of the Commission . Achievements have taken precedence in publicity
matters.

Daily internal media monitoring covering print, broadcasting and online media is conducted by the
Communications Department .

External media monitoring is conducted by the GCIS.

The Commission’s website offers links to other human rights bodies, a number of CSOs and relevant local
and international links. The website continues to host extensive reports and general information on the
workings of the Commission. The Communication Department’s staff was responsible for 90 percent of
materials, design and production on behalf of the Commission .

4.8.2 PURPOSE

The primary objective of the Communication Department is to raise awareness on gender equality and
the work of the Commission through campaigns, publications, media liaison and promotional material.
It is also responsible for creating a communication-friendly environment within the Commission and with
its stakeholders which include CSOs, NGOs and CBOs .

The Commission recognises communications as an important vehicle to transmit messages of gender
awareness and gender transformation both to the public at large and , more specifically , to its identified
target audiences. A Communications Office was established and resourced so to enhance the work of
the Commission and to effectively answer requests from the media . Key functions of the Communication
Department include media interaction and public relations.

4.8.3 PRIMARY OBJECTIVES

•  Develop and implement the Communications Strategy of the Commission in order to promote
gender equality awareness for the financial year quoted ;

• Foster favourable relations with local, regional and national media to receive optimal and
positive reporting ;
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• Develop and promote educational messages - through various media channels - have been
core to the media coverage;

• Increase awareness and promote the work and corporate image of the Commission in local
communities and its external target audiences; and

• Promote awareness on the Commission and its work in the media selected.

4.8.4 SERVICE DELIVERY ACHIEVEMENTS

Sub - Outputs Output Actual Performance Against Target
Programme  Performance

Measures/
Service Delivery Target Actual
Indicator

Internal and Implementation Develop an Approved internal Planned internal
external of internal and internal and and external and external
communication external external Communications communication

Communications Communication Strategy activities based
Strategy and Strategy to  on approved
resultant policy . inform and strategy .

educate internal
and external
stakeholders
about
organisational
policies .

Manage the Enhance current On-going ; On-going ; production
development of internal and production of of monthly newsletter,
internal and external monthly and Newsflash, and
external communication quarterly newsletters other internal and
communication vehicles . and Newsflash . external vehicles .
vehicles .

Production of Coordinate Received institutional Distributed Annual
Annual Report implementation compiled content Report to
2008/09 . timetable from SP and facilitate stakeholder

with strategic editing, graphic database .
planning (SP) . design and printing .

Submitted final
Annual Report for
Parliamentary tabling .

Coordinate Facilitate Facilitate Facilitated
organisational  organisational organisational events organisational
activities/event . events/activities. / activities. events/activities .

Develop, promote Conduct internal Monitor and Monitored and
and maintain  workshops to advise correct advised
corporate branding . impact usage of corporate correct usage of

knowledge of  branding . corporate branding .
corporate identity .

Manage and Ongoing , during Ongoing . 2009/10 Ongoing . 2009/10
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provide desk top 2009/10: production of production of
publishing, production of organisational organisational
design and layout . organisational publications . publications .

publications .

Manage and Edit  Edit organisational Edited organisational
implemented organisational publications . publications .
editing of publications .
organisational
publications .

Promotion of vision Ongoing ; Ongoing ;  Ongoing ;
identity and image organisation organisation organisation
of the department of events to of events to improve of events to improve
to (internal ) staff . improve  staff morale . staff morale .

staff morale .

Management of Management Management and Management and
photo library . and continuous continuous update continuous update

update  of photo library . of photo library .
of photo library .

Media Relations Approve  Develop Approve internal Organisational Media
organisational  organisational and external  Strategy developed .
Media Strategy . Media Strategy – Media Strategy . Strategy:

internal and reviewed and
external . implemented .

Monthly Develop monthly Monthly Monthly
departmental organisational organisational organisational
media programme . media  media programme media programme

programme . to be developed developed and
and implemented . implemented .

Daily media Media Daily media Daily media
monitoring . monitoring  monitoring monitoring

implementation . to be emailed to  emailed to top
top management management
and Chairperson . and Chairperson .

Created monthly Monthly media Monthly media Monthly media
media analysis analysis report analysis report to be analysis report
report . issued to all top issued to all top issued to all top

management  management and management
and Chairperson . Chairperson . and Chairperson .

Chairperson’s Chairperson’s Chairperson’s Chairperson’s
Monthly media Monthly Monthly Monthly media
programme . media media programme programme

programme  to be approved  approved and
approved and and implemented . implemented .
implemented .

Sub - Outputs Output Actual Performance Against Target
Programme  Performance

Measures/
Service Delivery Target Actual
Indicator
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Sub - Outputs Output Actual Performance Against Target
Programme  Performance

Measures/
Service Delivery Target Actual
Indicator

Marketing and Approve strategy Development of Monitored Monitor Communication
Communications for communications Communications the effectiveness of Strategy reviewed
Campaigns services based on Strategy through the strategy . and implemented .

the Organisational implementation
Communication and monitoring
Strategy . thereof.

Approve plan for Implementation Implement the Implemented the
the awareness of the awareness awareness awareness campaign
campaign . campaign for campaign for for stakeholder

stakeholder stakeholder education and
education and education interaction .
interaction . and interaction .

Monitor the Monitored the
effectiveness of the effectiveness of the
awareness awareness campaign
campaign through through the GCIS .
the GCIS.

Reviewed
effectiveness of
awareness campaign
implemented in
2007-2010 .
Over this year there
has been an increase
of stakeholders
engaging with the
Commission , by
70 percent.

Produce brochures, Distribute Distribute materials  Reviewed content,
posters, flyers and materials developed through   format of materials
other materials developed a well researched  and distribution
aimed at relevant through a well Distribution Strategy . channels .
stakeholders . researched

Distribution
Strategy .

Monitored the Monitored the
effectiveness of continued
material and effectiveness of
distribution materials produced
strategy . and distribution

strategy .

Translate content
into African
languages - two
media statements
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translated into the
Zulu language .

Place advertorials  Update Update advertorial Updated advertorial
in community,  advertorial campaign messages campaign messages
national and  campaign in line with new in line with new
mainstream media . messages in line developments . developments .

with new
developments .

Monitored . Monitored . Advertorial Advertorial campaign
campaign and vehicles
monitored reviewed for

effectiveness ;
Ongoing .

Monitor  Monitor Monitor effectiveness
effectiveness of effectiveness of of updated
messages  adjusted messages
communicated . messages communicated.

communicated .

Develop a strategy Monitor Monitor effectiveness Reviewed the
for exhibitions and effectiveness of the strategy. effectiveness of
road shows . of the strategy.  the strategy .

Organise and Upgrade the Upgrade the The Communications
implement exhibitions and exhibitions Strategy is a working
exhibitions and roadshows and roadshows document and is
roadshows . strategy and strategy and reviewed every year .

implement implement changes . It includes the
changes . strategy for exhibitions

and roadshows.

Develop a strategy Monitor Monitor effectiveness Reviewed the
for gender focused effectiveness and progress made effectiveness of
commemorated and progress by the organisation . the strategies .
events . made by the

organisation,
monthly .

Identify and  Upgrade the strategy
implement activities . in line with

developments .

Coordinate monthly Monitor and Monitor and create Ongoing ; throughout
provincial and local  create platform  platform for shared the 2009/10
events calendar . for shared sector sector news and  financial year .

news and  activities .
activities in
monthly  Monthly provincial
provincial and and local events
local events calendar distributed .
calendar .

Sub - Outputs Output Actual Performance Against Target
Programme  Performance

Measures/
Service Delivery Target Actual
Indicator



Sub - Outputs Output Actual Performance Against Target
Programme  Performance

Measures/
Service Delivery Target Actual
Indicator
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Organisational Stakeholder Stakeholder  Ongoing ; throughout
stakeholder database database updated . the 2009/10
database . updated .  financial year .

Continuous Continuous updating
updating and provided and
provide access provides access to
to stakeholders . stakeholders .
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4.9 PROGRAMME: FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION

4.9.1 OVERVIEW OF PERFORMANCE

The activities of the Commission are principally funded from the fiscus. In the year under review, 100%
of funding was received from the National Treasury coffers, constituting transfers made in accordance
with a parliamentary vote. The Commission’s share of the vote money represents a main division within
a vote for the Department of Women, Children and Persons with Disabilities. Accordingly, income trans -
fers for the reporting period stood at R49,1 million compared to R46, 2 million in the previous financial
year. The allocation represented a nominal growth of 6% in income grants from government, approxi -
mately 0% growth in real terms. There has been an insignificant interest income and income from other
sundry sources, reported in the period under review to the total amount of R15 000.00 ( in 2009-10) and
R89 000.00 (2008-9).

The level of spending has declined by over R5 million (or 9%); from R57 million in the prior reporting period
to R51,6 million in 2009 /10. The reduction in spending, although still above budget , is attributable to com -
parative savings on legal fees and expenditure on other professional services which have been radically
reduced in the current year. The graph below illustrates the comparative levels of expenditure recorded
by the Commission in the previous three financial years.
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4.9.1.1 Composition of expenditure

Economic Classifications

The expenditure recorded by the Commission during the reporting period is comprised of costs incurred
on staff remuneration, representing 61% (or R31, 381) of the total expenditure for the year as well as
goods and services procured from third parties, amounting to R20 million or 39% of the total costs
recorded in the period. The comparatives to the restated figures of the previous final year show that
goods and services constituted 48% of total costs, 9% higher than the relative percentage for 2009 /10;
in the same way the relative percentage on staff costs was lower at 52% in relation to the total expen -
diture recorded for the year.
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4.9.1.2 Expenditure by location

Provinces

The Commission drives the roll out of its mandate primarily through the nine provincial offices. The work
of provinces is substantively supported by departmental heads based in Head Office. The principal ac -
tivities in each Province are carried out by a legal officer, research officer and an education officer, ad -
ministratively supported by a provincial coordinator as well as two administrative staff. For the year
ending 31 March 2010, a total expenditure of R16,2 million was reported by all the nine provincial offices.
Of this, R12,8 million was spent to compensate employees and the balance of R3, 4 million was spent
on goods and services.

Head Office

The Head Office of the Commission is located in Johannesburg and is staffed by senior managers tasked
to perform their respective roles as head of department as well as the administration on corporate serv -
ices of the Commission. The support departments are also located at Head Office and made of the In -
formation Technology, Finance and Administration and Human Resources Management Departments   .
The expenses recorded for the year stood at R35,4 million compared to R41 ,6 million (figures restated)
in the previous year. This spending includes costs incurred by the secretariat and Commissioners and is
made out of R18,56 million (R17,97 million in 2008 /0 9) on Compensation of employees and R16,84 million
(R23,59 million in 2008 /0 9). The total Head Office costs, represents 69% of the total expenditure of R51,6
million for the current year.

4.9.1.3 Expenditure by economic classification and main program

The service delivery objectives of the Commission are carried out through provincial offices and three
main functional departments, namely; Legal, Research and Policy Analysis as well as Public Education
and Information Departments. The Commission pursues these objectives in the context of six thematic
areas mentioned under the section on Performance Information.
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4.9.1.4 Commissioners: Support and Governance

The Commissioners lead each of the thematic areas in support to the secretariat role to execute pro -
grammatic work. In this pursuit, R10,3 million was spent under the Office of Commissioners in the current
financial year compared to R19 million in the previous reporting period. This represented a fall in spend -
ing to an extend of 46%, primarily because of savings on remuneration due to vacancies in the office
as well as a material lower spending on goods and services when compared to spending in the previous
year. The comparative under expenditure arose from savings on legal fees and other professional serv -
ices due to the extensive use consultants in the previous year.

Corporate Support
In the current reporting period the support functions incurred costs to the amount of R20,3 million com -
pared R18,1 million in the previous year, representing an increase of 12%. Goods and Services constituted
R12,89 million in 2009 /10, representing a 5% drop from a restated figure of R13,56 million in prior period.
The expenditure for compensation of employees was mainly increased by an additional leave provision
recorded and the cost of living adjustments, including the additional cost due to filling of vacancies
that existed in the preceding financial year.
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Expenditure by main program
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Major sub-programme

The service delivery activities are carried out by the various provincial offices supported by and together
with the three functional departments located in Head Office. The expenditure distribution is reflected
below :

The expenditure by Provincial Office constitutes 77% of the overall sub- programmes’ spending level of
R21 million. The main element contributing to this expense is the compensation for various officers who
perform the core sub-program activities at grass roots level across the country. The graph below demon -
strates a typical organisational structure at each of the nine Provincial Offices.

Provinces also report running expenditure, classified as goods and services in the table above. This is
primarily made up of payments for the telecommunication, computer services, travel and accommo -
dation, printing and stationery and other ancillary operating and administrative expenses .
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4.9.1.5 Goods and Services - detailed lines of expenditure

The table below comparatively indicates expenditure incurred by all sub-progrmmes according to spe -
cific major line items between the 2008 -0 9 and 2009 -10 financial years .

The key cost driving line items incurred on running the programmes of Commission are primarily;
• Travel & Accommodation at R3, 87 million compared to a restated amount of R4, 36 realized

in 2008-09 financial year
• Depreciation and amortization contributed a material amount to total expenditure recorded

for the period at R3, 73 million(2009-10) whilst the restated amount for the 2008-9 reporting pe -
riod stood at R4,45 million

• Telecommunications, Computer services, office maintenance and rentals respectively con -
tributed R1, 856 million, R1, 49 million and R1, 01 million to the overheads during the year under
review. The combined amount relatively stood at parity with the spending on similar items in
the prior reporting period

• Professional services and audit fees materialized respectively at R887, 000 and R1,934 million
correspondingly compared to R488, 000 and R8, 322 million in the previous reporting period

• During the year under review, R695, 214 was recorded as an impairment to long outstanding
receivables compared to R90, 170 in 2008-9 financial year.

• Comparatively between the two financial years, professional services; which is comprised of
consulting fees and legal expenses which together made up the higher expenditure in the
previous year

4.9.2. Financial position
The total net assets situation deteriorated from a positive figure of R420, 485 in 2009 to a negative figure
of R2, 03 million in 2010. The weakening of the balance sheet is mainly as a result of the diminishing net
carrying amounts on the non-current assets, primarily because of the current depreciation provision
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(R3, 7 million) made during the reporting period.

On the other hand, an improvement in the current ratio is noted. As at 31 March 2009, the Commission’s
current ratio stood at 9% compared to 19% at 31 March 2010. The improvement is attributable to a
reduction in current liabilities by 6% (or R 558,813) from the recorded liabilities of R9 , 02 million in
2008-09 financial year. The cash ratio has also positively contributed to an improved current ratio- the
cash & cash equivalents increased from R271 , 430 in 2008-9 to R1, 6 million in 2009-10 financial year .

4.9.3 RISK MANAGEMENT

Management is responsible for proactively identifying, evaluating, managing and monitoring all significant
risks faced by the Commission. The Risk Management Strategy has been implemented to safeguard the
Commission’s staff, assets, corporate credibility and reputation .
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5.1 REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMMISSION FOR GENDER EQUALITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2010

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction
I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Commission for Gender Equality
(commission), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2010, and the statement
of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets and cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, as set out
on pages 98 to 130.

Accounting officer’s responsibility for the financial statements
The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards
of GRAP) and in the manner required by the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa (PFMA). This
responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the prepa -
ration and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor-General’s responsibility
As required by section 188 of the Constitution of South Africa, section 4 of the Public Audit Act of South
Africa and Commission for Gender Equality Act 39 of 1996, my responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and General Notice 1570
of 2009 issued in Government Gazette 32758 of 27 November 2009. Those standards require that I comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

Basis for qualified opinion

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Included in trade and other payables from exchange transactions are payroll creditors which represents
the leave pay accrual. The number of days of leave carried forward by employees are in excess of the
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number of days allowed to be carried forward as stipulated by sections 20 and 22 of the Basic Conditions
of Employment Act 1997, Act No. 75 of 1997, as a result the leave pay accrual is overstated by an
estimated amount of R2 141 737 (2008/09: R1 997 078) and staff cost are overstated by an estimate amount
of R713 033 (2008/09: R604 424).

Furthermore, I could not obtain reasonable assurance that the remaining balance of the leave pay
provision amounting to R1 435 138 (2008/09: R420 484) is fairly stated. The commission’s records did not
permit the application of alternative audit procedures regarding the leave pay accrual. Consequently,
I did not obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy myself as to the completeness and
valuation of the payroll creditors amounting to R3 576 875 (2008/09: R2 417 562) as disclosed in note 11 to
the financial statements.

Staff costs
The amount for staff cost as per the financial statements does not agree with the amount as per the payroll
system and the difference could not be supported by appropriate audit evidence. Consequently, I did
not obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy myself as to the occurrence, accuracy and
classification of the difference amounting to R3 133 685 (2008/09 R3 217 207 as included in note 5 to the
financial statements.

Irregular expenditure

Section 38(1)(a)(iii) of the PFMA requires the commission to implement and maintain an appropriate
procurement and provisioning system which is fair, equitable, transparent, competitive and cost-effective.
Payments in contravention of the PFMA, Treasury Regulations of 2005 (TR), Preferential Procurement
Framework Act and its regulations, supply chain management practice notes issued by the National
Treasury amounting to R796 828 (2008/9: R5 977 156) were identified as a result of the audit were not
disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

Furthermore, the commission did not review all its expenditure to identify and quantify and disclose all
irregular expenditure incurred. Consequently, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to satisfy myself as to the completeness of irregular expenditure amounting to R14 840 718 (2008/09: R8
891 563) as disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

Contingent liabilities
The Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice, GRAP 19, Provisions, contingent liabilities
and contingent assets, requires disclosure for each class of contingent liability at reporting date and a
brief description of its nature.

Two legal advisers did not respond to my requests to confirm claims and litigation relating to the
commission that they were acting on due disputes between them and the commission.

Consequently, I did not obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy myself as to the
completeness of contingent liabilities as disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements.

Qualified opinion
In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for qualified opinion paragraphs,
the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the commission as
at 31 March 2010 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and
in the manner required by the Public Audit Act of South Africa and the Commission for Gender Equality
Act, 1996 (Act No. 39 of 1996).

Emphasis of matter
I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters:
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Material losses through criminal conduct and impairment
Included in note 9 to the financial statements is an amount of R406 746 as a result of losses through criminal
conduct. This amount and a further R378 638 have been impaired due to doubts about the recoverabil -
ity.

Restatement of corresponding figures
As disclosed in note 16 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 2009 have been
restated as a result of errors discovered during 2010 in the financial statements of the commission at, and
for the year ended, 31 March 2009.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
As disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements, fruitless and wasteful expenditure amounting to R311
901 was incurred that could have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised.

Going concern
Note 23 to the financial statements indicates that the commission incurred a net loss of R2 510 103 (2008/09:
R10 699 069) and as of 31 March 2010, the current liabilities exceeded its total assets by R2 030 735. These
conditions, along with other matters as set out in the note 23 indicate the existence of a material uncer -
tainty that may cast significant doubt on the commission’s ability to operate as a going concern.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
In terms of the PAA of South Africa and General notice 1570 of 2009, issued in Government Gazette No.
32758 of 27 November 2009 I include below my findings on the report on predetermined objectives,
compliance with the PFMA and financial management (internal control).

Findings

Predetermined objectives

Non-compliance with applicable legislation
• Public Finance Management Act of South Africa

Lack of effective, efficient and transparent systems and internal controls regarding performance man -
agement
The accounting officer did not ensure that the commission has and maintains an effective, efficient
and transparent system and internal controls regarding performance management, which describe
and represent how the institution’s processes of performance planning, monitoring, measurement,
review and reporting will be conducted, organised and managed, as required in terms of section
38(1)(a)(i) and (b) of the PFMA.
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• Treasury Regulations

Inadequate quarterly reporting on performance information
The quarterly reports of the commission did not track in all instances the progress against outputs,
indicators and targets as per the approved strategic performance plan and therefore did not facilitate
effective performance monitoring and evaluation, as required by TR 5.3.

Presentation of reported performance information

Reasons for major variances between planned and actual reported targets were not explained
Adequate explanations for major variances between the planned and the actual reported targets for
the following programme gender poverty, gender-based violence, gender culture, religion and tradition
and gender with HIV/AIDS, were not reported as required in terms of the relevant reporting guidance. In
total, 100% of the reported targets with major variances have no explanations for those variances.

Usefulness of reported performance information
The following criteria were used to assess the usefulness of the planned and reported performance:

• Consistency: Has the commission reported on its performance with regard to its objectives, indicators
and targets in its approved strategic plan, i.e. are the objectives, indicators and targets consistent
between planning and reporting documents ?

• Relevance: Is there a clear and logical link between the objectives, outcomes, outputs, indicators and
performance targets ?

• Measurability: Are objectives made measurable by means of indicators and targets? Are indicators
well defined and verifiable, and are targets specific, measurable, and time bound ?

The following audit finding relate to the above criteria:

Reported information not consistent with planned objectives, indicators and targets
The commission has not reported throughout on its performance against predetermined objectives,
indicators and targets which is consistent with the approved strategic plan.

Reliability of reported performance information
The following criteria were used to assess the usefulness of the planned and reported performance:

• Validity: Has the actual reported performance occurred and does it pertain to the entity, i.e. can the
reported performance information be traced back to the source data or documentation?

• Accuracy: Amounts, numbers and other data relating to reported actual performance have been
recorded and reported appropriately.

• Completeness: All actual results and events that should have been recorded have been included in the
reported performance information.

The following audit finding relate to the above criteria:

Reported targets not valid, accurate and complete as no supporting source information was provided
For the selected programmes, gender poverty, gender based violence, gender culture, religion and
tradition and gender HIV/AIDS, the validity, accuracy and completeness for 53% of the reported indicators
could not be established as sufficient appropriate audit evidence and relevant source documentation
could not be provided for audit purposes.
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Compliance with laws and regulations

Treasury Regulations of 2005 and Public Finance Management Act of South Africa
• Contrary to the requirements of TR 8.2.3 and section 38(1)(f) of the PFMA, not all invoices were paid

within 30 days from receipt of the invoice.

• Contrary to the requirements of TR61A4.1, the commission did not establish a supply chain
management unit.

• The commission did not report irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure to National Treasury as
required by TR 9.1.2.

• Contrary to the requirements of section 40(4)(b) of the PFMA, monthly information was not prepared
and submitted to National Treasury and the executive authority for the entire year.

• Contrary to the requirements of TR 3.2.11 and sections 38(1)(a)(i) and 76(4)(e) of the PFMA, the internal
audit function did not assist the accounting officer in maintaining efficient and effective controls as it
did not fulfil its responsibilities as set out in legislation and in accordance with accepted best practice
and standards.

• Contrary to the requirements of TR 3.2.1, the commission does not have a risk management strategy,
which includes a fraud prevention plan

INTERNAL CONTROL
I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements and the report on predeter -
mined objectives and compliance with the PFMA, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control. The matters reported below are limited to the deficiencies identified during
the audit.

Leadership
The commission did not have sufficient monitoring controls to ensure compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations, and internal controls. Furthermore, the internal policies and procedures of the commission
pertaining to the planning and monitoring of performance information are not sufficient to ensure reliable
reporting.

The commission does not have adequately skilled resources capable of implementing the financial
reporting framework and performance management requirements.

Governance
Internal audit did not fulfil its responsibilities as set out in legislation and in accordance with accepted best
practice and standards. Furthermore they did not assist the accounting officer by evaluating internal
controls related to compliance with laws, regulations and controls, and by developing recommendations
for their enhancement and improvement.
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OTHER REPORTS

Investigations in progress
An investigation is being conducted based complaints and allegations received of improper conduct
at the commission. The investigation aims to establish misconduct by officials of the commission. The
investigation was still ongoing at the reporting date.

An alleged misappropriation of funds has been referred for a further investigation.

Pretoria

18 August 2010
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Approval of annual financial statements

I am responsible for the preparation of these annual financial statements, which are set out on pages 1 to 43,
in terms of Section 40 of the Public Finance Management Act and which I have signed on behalf of the Commission.

__________________________________________________________________

Accounting Officer

30 July 2010

__________________________________________________________________
Chairperson

30 July 2010

Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010
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Erratum

This is in correction Page 96 of the 2009/2010 CGE Annual Report. The name of
Commissioner K. Meruti was mistakenly omitted. CGE apologises for this error.
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Note 2010 2009

Revenue  49,126,925 46,282,267
Parliamentary grants 2 49,112,000  46,193,000
Other revenue 3  14,925   89,267

Expenses    51,637,029  56,981,336
Administrative expenses 4 13,668,153 19,258,723
Staff cost 5   31,381,281 28,958,135
Other operating expenses 6    2,623,667   3,552,091
Finance cost 7     231,344    766,000

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expense 10.3 3,732,585 4,446,387

Deficit for the period (2,510,104) (10,699,069)

5.4 Statement of Financial Performance
for the year ended 31 March 2010
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Note 2010 2009
ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8 1,600,144  271,430
Trade and other receivables from 9  - 512,750
exchange transactions

1,600,144 784,180

Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment  10 4,808,358 8,269,031
Intangible assets 10.2  26,554  391,878

4,834,912  8,660,909

Total Assets 6,435,056 9,445,089

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions  11 8,074,194 8,376,258
Finance lease liability 12    286,733
Provisions 13  391,597   361,613

8,465,791 9,024,604
Non-current liabilities
Non-current finance lease liability 12 -  -

-  -
Total Liabilities 8,465,791 9,024,604

Net assets (2,030,735) 420,485

NET ASSETS

Accumulated surplus/(deficit)  (2,030,735)  420,485

Total Net Assets (2,030,735) 420,485

5.5 Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 March 2010
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Accumulated Total: net
surplus/(deficit)  assets

Note
Balance at 1 April 2008       5,743,510     5,743,510
Correction of prior period error  16    5,376,044      5,376,044
Restated balance    11,119,554   11,119,554
Surplus/(deficit) for the period restated   (10,699,069) (10,699,069)
Balance at 1 April 2009        420,485       420,485
Property, plant and equipment omitted in prior year 10.1       58,884         58,884
Restated balance        479,369        479,369
Surplus/(deficit) for the period     (2,510,104)  (2,510,104)
Balance at 31 March 2010    (2,030,735)    (2,030,735)

5.6 Statement Of Changes In Net Assets
for the year ended 31 March 2010
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Note  2010  2009
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts 49,126,925 46,282,267

Grants 49,112,000 46,193,000
Interest received  9,989  89,267
Other income  4,936   -

Payments  47,478,612 48,048,895
Employee costs & Suppliers 47,459,239 47,719,420
Interest paid   19,373  329,475

-
Net cash flows from operating activities 14 1,648,314 (1,766,628)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets (32,866) (2,062,145)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  -  -
Net cash flows from investing activities (32,866) (2,062,145)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of finance lease liability  (286,733)  (226,010)
Net cash flows from financing activities (286,733) (226,010)

Net increase/(decrease) in net cash
and cash equivalents  1,328,714 (4,054,784)
Net cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of period    271,430  4,326,214
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of period 8  1,600,144   271,430

5.7 CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2010
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Significant accounting policies

The Commission is an institution established in terms of Chapter Nine of the Republic of South
Africa Constitution Act (Act No. 108 of 1996) and is responsible for

• the promotion for the respect of gender equality ;
• protection, development and attainment of gender equality

.
Its additional mandate is further provided for in the Commission on Gender Equality Act (Act No.
39 of 1996) as amended.
The primary objective of Chapter Nine institutions, including the Commission, is to
strengthen constitutional democracy.

The core business of the Commission is:-
• to promote gender equality
• to advise
• to make recommendations to Parliament or
• any other legislature with regard to any laws or proposed legislation that affects gender

equality and the status of women

The principle accounting policies applied in the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to the years presented, unless otherwise stated :
(c) Consideration was made on whether the accounting policy is reasonable, given the circum -

stances of the Commission and noted that it is important and reasonable as well.

(d) Consideration was made on the impact of this deviation on the audit report and recommen -
dation to adjust as to comply with the financial reporting statements (GRAP).

1.1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with South African Statements of
General Accepted Accounting Practice and Statements of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice, the going concern principle, and using the historical cost basis, except where otherwise
indicated.

1.1.1 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of Commission financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjust -
ment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
balance sheet date, that have significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010

5.8 Account Policies
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Property, vehicles, plant and equipment and Intangible assets

Property, vehicles, plant and equipment and Intangible assets are depreciated over their useful
life taking into account residual values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and
residual values are assessed annually and may vary depending on a number of factors. In
reassessing asset lives, factors such as technological innovation and maintenance programmes
are taken into account. Residual value assessments consider issues such as future market
conditions, the remaining life of the asset and projected disposal values.

1.1.2 Going Concern

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the going concern principle and
on an accrual basis with the measurement base applied being the historical cost unless stated
otherwise. The going concern basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future
operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations
and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

1.1.3 Standards and amendments to standards issued but not effective
The following standards and amendments to standard have been issued but are not effective :

Standard Summary and impact Effective date

GRAP 18 – This standard establishes Issued by the ASB – March 2005
Segment principles for reporting financial

information by segments.

Reporting The impact on the financial Effective date - To be determined
results and disclosure is by the Minister of Finance
considered to be minimal.

GRAP 21 – This standard prescribes the Issued by the ASB – March 2009.
Impairment of procedures that the
Non-cash- Commission applies to
generating Assets determine whether a non-cash Effective date - To be determined

generating asset is impaired and by the Minister of Finance
to ensure that impairment
losses are recognised.

The impact on the financial
results and disclosure is
considered to be minimal.

GRAP 23 – This standard prescribes the Issued by the ASB – February 2008.
Revenue from requirements for the financial
Non-exchange  reporting of revenue from Effective date - To be determined
transactions non-exchange (grants and by the Minister of Finance.

transfer payments transactions).

The impact on the financial
results and disclosure is
considered to be minimal.

However, in terms of Directive 5,
the Commission, considered the
accounting principles of
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Standard Summary and impact Effective date

GRAP 23 and developed an
accounting policy to account
for government transfers and
foreign aid assistance.
Refer note 1.4.

GRAP 24 – This standard requires a Issued by the ASB – November 2007.
Presentation of comparison of budget and
Budget Information actual amounts and an Effective date - To be determined
in the Financial explanation for material by the Minister of Finance.
Statements differences.

The impact on the financial
results is considered to be
minimal. However the impact
on disclosure is significant.

GRAP 25 – The standard prescribes the Issued by the ASB – November 2009.
Employee Benefits accounting treatment and

disclosure for employee benefits.

The impact on the financial
results and disclosure is
considered to be minimal.

GRAP 26 - This standard prescribes the Issued by the ASB – March 2009
Impairment of procedures to determine
Cash-generating whether a cash generating Effective date - To be determined
Assets asset is impaired and to ensure by the Minister of Finance.

that impairment losses are
recognised.

The impact on the financial
results and disclosure is
considered to be minimal.

GRAP 104 – This standard establishes Issued by the ASB – October 2009
Financial principles for recognising,
Instruments measuring, presenting and Effective date - To be determined
Improvements to disclosing financial instruments. by the Minister of Finance.
the Standards of
GRAP Amendment The impact on the financial Proposed effective date 01-Apr-11
to IFRS 7 – Financial   results and disclosure
Instruments: is considered to be minimal.
Disclosures

Improvements are proposed
to the following standards of
GRAP: GRAP 1- 4, 9-14, 16-17, 19
and 100 as part of the ASB’s
improvement project.

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010



105

Standard Summary and impact Effective date

The impact on the financial
results and disclosure is
considered to be minimal.

- Presentation of finance cost
- Amendment dealing with
improving disclosures of
financial instruments
- Amendments enhancing
disclosures of fair value and
liquidity risk.

This standard will not have an
impact on the financial results or
disclosure as it has been
removed from the framework
prescribed in Directive 5 for
periods beginning on
1 April 2010.

** Amendment Clarifications of disclosures Issued by the IASB in March 2009
to IFRS 7 – Financial The amendment to the but the effective date was back
Instruments: Standard clarifies certain dated to 01 January 2009.
Disclosures disclosures. As per confirmation with the ASB,

this standard is not effective for the
year ended 31 March 2010.

This standard will not have an
impact on the financial results or
disclosure as it has been
removed from the framework
prescribed in Directive 5 for
periods beginning on
1 April 2010.

IFRS 9 – New standard issued relating to 01-Jan 2013
Financial the classification and
Instruments measurement of financial assets,

which will replace the relevant
portions of IAS 39.

This standard will not have an
impact on the financial results or
disclosure as it has been
removed from the framework
prescribed in Directive 5 for
periods beginning on 1 April 2010.
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Standard Summary and impact Effective date

*Amendment to - Curtailments and negative Issued by the IASB in March 2009 but the
IAS 19 – past service cost effective date was back dated to
Employee Benefits - Plan administration costs 01 January 2009. As per confirmation

- Replacement of term “fall due” with the ASB, this standard is not
- Guidance on contingent effective for the year ended
liabilities 31 March 2010.
The impact on the financial
results and disclosure is
considered to be minimal.

Amendment to Certain financial instruments will Issued by the IASB in March 2009
IAS 32 – be classified as equity whereas, but the effective date was back dated
Financial prior to these amendments, they to 01 January 2009. As per confirmation
Instruments would have been classified as with the ASB, this standard is not effective
Presentation financial liabilities. for the year ended 31 March 2010.

This standard will not have an
impact on the financial results or
disclosure as it has been
removed from the framework
prescribed in Directive 5 for
periods beginning on
1 April 2010.

*Amendment - Reclassification of derivatives Issued by the IASB in March 2009 but the
to IAS 39 –  into or out of the classification effective date was back dated to

of at fair value through 01 January 2009. As per confirmation
profit or loss with the ASB, this standard is not effectiv e

for the year ended 31 March 2010.
Financial - Designating and documenting
Instruments:
Recognition and hedges at the segment level
Measurement - Applicable effective interest

rate on cessation of fair
value hedge
Accounting
This standard will not have an
impact on the financial results or
disclosure as it has been
removed from the framework
prescribed in Directive 5 for
periods beginning on 1 April 2011

Amendment to – Clarifies two hedge 01-Jul-09
IAS 39 accounting issues:

Financial 1. Inflation in a financial
Instruments: hedged item
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Standard Summary and impact Effective date

Recognition and 2. A one-sided risk in a hedged
Measurement item

This standard will not have an
impact on the financial results
or disclosure as it has been
removed from the framework
prescribed in Directive 5 for
periods beginning on 1 April 2010.

Amendment to Amendments for embedded
IAS 39 –Financial derivatives when reclassifying
Instruments: financial instruments.
Recognition and
Measurement

This standard will not have an
impact on the financial results or
disclosure as it has been
removed from the framework
prescribed in Directive 5 for
periods beginning on
1 April 2010. 01-Jul-09

* Amendment to - Treating loan prepayment 01-Jan-10
IAS 39 – Financial penalties as closely related
Instruments: embedded derivatives
Recognition - Scope exemption for business
and Measurement  combination contracts

- Cash flow hedge accounting

This standard will not have an
impact on the financial results or
disclosure as it has been
removed from the framework
prescribed in Directive 5 for
periods beginning on 1 April 2010.

GRAP 103 Heritage Assets

[* Standards and interpretations affected by the Improvements to IFRS]
[** Standards and interpretations affected by the Improvements to IFRS issued
in an exposure draft as ED 272 – Improvements to IFRSs: Proposed amendments to International
Financial Reporting Standards]
[*** Standards affected by the Improvements Project of the ASB issued in an
exposure draft as ED 63 - Improvements to the Standards of GRAP]
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1.2 Foreign Currency Translation

These financial statements are presented in South African Rand since that is the currency in which
the majority of the Commission’s’ transactions is denominated.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the date of the transactions.

1.3 Borrowing costs
The Public Finance Management Act prohibits the Commission from borrowing unless such
borrowing has been effected through the Minister of Finance.

Partial exemption to this prohibition has been granted through practice note 5 of 2006 which
allows the Commission to enter into certain finance leases.

Borrowing costs incurred other than on qualifying assets are recognised as an expense in surplus
or deficit in the period to which they relate.

1.4 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the enterprise and these
benefits can be measured reliably

1.4.1 Revenue from non exchange transactions
Government transfers and Local and foreign aid assistance
Revenue from non-exchange transactions constitutes transfer payments from the Commission of
Justice and Constitutional Development and the European Union through the CSAP Programme.

The Commission recognises revenue from transfers in the period in which the transfer becomes
binding, that it is when the asset transferred meets the definition of an asset for the Commission
and the recognition criteria for an asset have been met.

Assets and revenue recognised as a consequence of a transfer are measured at the fair value
of the assets recognised as at the date of recognition.

Monetary assets are measured at their nominal value unless the time value of money is material,
in which case present value is used, calculated using a discount rate that reflects the risk inherent
in holding the asset. Non-monetary assets are measured at their fair value This represents a
change in accounting policy

Receivables are recognised when a binding transfer arrangement is in place but cash or other
assets have not been received

The Commission analyses all stipulations contained in transfer agreements to determine if it incurs
a liability when it accepts transferred resources.
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Interest income
Interest income constitutes is accrued on favourable balances with commercial banking
institutions. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount.

Gains or losses on disposal
Gains or losses on disposal are included in surplus or deficit for the year and are determined by
comparing sales proceeds to the carrying amounts.

Other income
Other income is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
Commission and is measured at their fair-value of the consideration received or receivable.

Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have
been avoided had reasonable care been exercised.

Irregular expenditure means expenditure, other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in
contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation
including the Public Finance Management Act.

All irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditures are charged against the surplus in the period
in which they occur. These expenditures will be disclosed separately in the annual financial
statements.

Unauthorised expenditure
Unauthorised expenditure is expenditure that has not been budgeted, expenditure that is not in
terms of the conditions of an allocation received from another sphere of government,
municipality or organ of state.

Unauthorised expenditure is accounted for as an expense in the statement of financial
performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement
of financial position.

1.5 Property plant and equipment

Initial recognition
Property, plant and equipment comprise of computer equipment, furniture and fittings, office
equipment and motor vehicles and are stated at historical costs less accumulated deprecia -
tion.

Maintenance and repairs, which neither materially add to the value of assets nor appreciably
prolong their useful lives, are expensed during the financial year in which they are incurred.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Commission and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
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Depreciation
Depreciation is charged against the assets on a straight line basis so as to fully depreciate the
asset to its net realisable value at the end of its useful live, from the date available for use.
The assets bought specifically for a project and intended for donation at the end of the project’s
life are depreciated over the life of the contract as the residual value at that point will be nil.

The assets residual values, useful lives and methods of deprecation are reviewed and adjusted
if appropriate, at each financial year-end.

Useful live
The following are the estimated useful lives of the different categories of assets and which are
depreciated on the straight-line method over the following periods:

Computer equipment 3-5 years
Furniture & fittings 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Motor Vehicle 4 years

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same
basis as owned assets or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

Derecognition
The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

Gains or losses on disposal are included in surplus or deficit for the year and are determined by
comparing sales proceeds to the carrying amounts.

1.6 Intangible assets

Initial recognition
Intangible assets consist of computer software. Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumu -
lated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation
Each item is amortised over its useful life once it is available for use. Amortisation is charged so
as to write off the cost or valuation of assets over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method.

The estimated useful lives, residual values, and amortisation method are reviewed at each year
end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Useful lives
Intangible assets other than goodwill are amortised over the following periods, considered to be
their estimated useful lives: Computer software 2 – 7 years.

Derecognition
The carrying amount of intangible assets is derecognised on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposal are
included in surplus or deficit for the year and are determined by comparing sales proceeds with
the carrying amounts.
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1.8 Impairment of non monetary assets

At each balance sheet date, the Commission reviews the carrying amount of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount for an individual asset, the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash generating) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are immediately recognised as an expense, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under the standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-gener -
ating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash generating unit) in
prior years.

A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that other standard.

1.9 Leases

Finance leases
Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the underlying asset are
transferred to the Commission are classified as finance leases. Assets held under finance leases
are initially recognised as assets at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the Statement of financial position as a
finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability.

Finance charges are charged directly to the Statement of financial performance. Contingent
rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating leases
Leases that the Commission enters into as a lessee, and where the lessor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the underlying asset, are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases are charged against revenue on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.
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1.10 Compensation of employees

Short-term employee benefits
The costs of short-term employee benefits are expensed in the statement of financial
performance when financial authorisation for payment is effected on the system.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits such as severance packages are recognised as an expense in the
statement of financial performance as a transfer (to households) when the final authorisation
for payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year) .

1.11 Financial instruments

Recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when the
Commission becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

All “regular way” purchases and sales of financial liabilities are recognised using trade date
accounting.

Measurement
Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value, which includes transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition these instruments are measured as set out below.

Financial assets
The Commission’s principle financial assets are accounts receivable and cash and cash
equivalents, which are classified as “loans and receivables”.

Accounts receivables
Accounts receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method
reduced by appropriate allowances for impairment.

Accounts receivables are financial assets that have fixed or determinable payments and are
not quoted in an active market.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits held with banks, all of which
are available for use by the Commission unless otherwise stated.

Financial liabilities
The Commission’s principle financial liabilities are accounts payable.

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, comprising original debt less principle
payments and amortisations.

Accounts payables
Accounts and other payables are stated at their nominal value.
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Short-term payables with no interest rate are measured at the original invoice amount if the
effect of discounting on individual transactions is immaterial.

All payables are settled within 30 days. Where there is a delay in payment it is usually due to a
dispute on the transaction.
Under such circumstances the time delay is not regarded as being material.

Derecognition
The Commission derecognises a financial asset (or where applicable part thereof) only when:

- the right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
- the Commission retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an

obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’
arrangement; or

- the Commission has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,

but has transferred control of the asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same customer on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability, and the
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the surplus or deficit for the year.

Offset of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of
financial position only when the Commission has a legally enforceable right to set off recognised
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

1.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that it will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.

Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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1.13 Comparatives

In order to conform to changes, comparative figures have been adjusted, where necessary.
The comparative figures shown in these financial statements are limited to the figures shown in
the previous year’s audited financial statements and such other comparative figures that may
reasonably have available for reporting.

1.14 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Commission; or a present obligation that arises from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation; or
the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

The Commission does not recognised contingent liability as liabilities because they possible
obligations, as it has yet to be confirmed whether the Commission has a present obligation that
could lead to an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential; or
present obligations that do not meet the recognition criteria in this Standard (because either it
is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential
will be required to settle the obligation, or a sufficiently reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation cannot be made.

1.15 Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or to
exercise significant influence or joint the party in making financial and operating decisions.
A party is related to an Commission if directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
the party controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Commission

• has an interest in the Commission that gives it significant influence over the Commission; or
has joint control over the Commission;

• the party is an associate of the Commission; the party is a joint venture in which the
Commission is a venture;

• the party is a member of the key management personnel of the Commission or its parent;

1.16 Commitments

Commitments are a legal obligation to undertake is in a given way at a given time in the future.
Usually, commitments refer to the requirement for parties to a futures contract to make or receive
delivery of the underlying commodities on the expiration date of the contract.

1.17 Prior year error

Prior period errors are omissions from and misstatements in, the Commission’s financial statements
for one or more prior periods arising from failure to use/misuse of reliable information that was
available when the financial statements for that period were issued, and could have been
reasonably expected to be taken into account in those financial statements.
Correct all errors retrospectively.

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010



115

Restate the comparative amounts for prior periods in which error occurred or if the error occurred
before that date, restate opening balance of assets, liabilities and net assets for earliest period
presented.

If impractical to determine period specific effects of the error, restate opening balances for
earliest period practicable.

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010



116

Commission for Gender Equality ANNUAL REPORT 2009-2010

2010 2009
2 Revenue

2 Parliamentary grants
Parliamentary grants received 49,112,000 46,193,000

49,112,000 46,193,000

2010 2009
3 Other revenue

Interest received 9,989 89,267
Sundry income 4,936

14,925 89,267

4 Administrative expenses
General expenses 3,072,975    491,308
Sundry operating expenses 4,346,741  6,180,879
Insuarance    -     1,732
Printing and photocopying   613,111   678,486
Postal, telecom and delivery fees 2,610,993  2,781,029
Publicity functions and conferences   204,070 3,508,603
Audit fees 1,933,613    488,042
Consultant fees   886,649 5,128,643

13,668,153 19,258,723

2010 2009

5 Staff cost
Basic 20,836,825 20,466,378
Medical aid- company contribution     404,454   397,708
Unemployment Insurance Fund     366,086   117,400
Leave pay charge 1,304,743 4,980,129
Overtime      97,719  216,510
Company contribution provident fund 2,584,746 2,360,940
Allowances    4,380,791     136,811
Company contribution- other 1,405,917    282,258

31,381,281 28,958,135

Note:

The Commissioners and key management's remuneration is included in note 17 as contained in
this report

5.9 Notes to the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010
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2010 2009

6 Other operating expenses
Staff training and development - 7,307
Legal fees 1,282,531 3,071,637
Maintenance, repairs and running costs  87,323  53,000
- Property and buildings   3,568  44,516
- Other maintenance repairs and running costs  83,756   8,485
Entertainment   - 136,564
Profit/(Loss) on disposal of assets 185,203  92,862
Impairment of debtors (Note 9) 695,215  90,170
Operating lease expenses 373,394 100,552

2,623,667 3,552,091

7 Finance cost
Finance lease cost 223,538 453,612
Bank Interest Interest paid 7,805 312,387

231,344 766,000

2010 2009

8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank 1,589,436 255,821
Cash on hand  10,708  15,609

1,600,144 271,430

2010 2009

9 Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions
Other receivables  785,384 602,920
Less: Impairment allowance (785,384)  (90,170)
Total   -   512,751

9.1.1 Trade receivables: Ageing
Current (0 – 30 days)
31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
91 - 120 days
121 - 365 days  182,464
+ 365 days  602,920  602,920
Total 785,384 602,920

9.1.2 Impairment allowance: Ageing
121 - 365 days  182,464 + 365 days
 602,920 Total
 785,384 -

9.2.1 Reconciliation of the impairment allowance

Balance at beginning of the year  90,170  -
Contributions to allowance (Note 6) 695,214 90,170
Impaired debts written off against provision
Reversal of allowance -

Balance at end of year 785,384 90,170
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2010 2009
10.1 Property, Plant and Equipment at deemed cost

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised at
deemed cost
Office furniture 58,883 -
Net assets 58,883  -

Deemed cost was determined for items of Property, Plant
and Equipment.

10.2 Intangible assets

2010 Total Software

Reconciliation of carrying value

Opening net carrying amount   391,878   391,878
Gross carrying amount 1,187,836 1,187,836
Accumulated amortisation  (795,958)  (795,958)

Additions - -

Amortisation (365,327) (365,327)

Closing net carrying amount   26,554   26,554
Gross carrying amount  1,187,838  1,187,838
Accumulated amortisation (1,161,284) (1,161,284)

2009  Total Software

Reconciliation of carrying value

Opening net carrying amount 787,823  787,823
Gross carrying amount 1,187,836 1,187,836
Accumulated amortisation  (400,013)  (400,013)

Additions - -

Amortization (395,945) (395,945)

Closing net carrying amount   391,878   391,878
Gross carrying amount 1,187,836 1,187,836
Accumulated amortisation  (795,958)  (795,958)

10.3
Depreciation, amortisation and
impairment expense
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 3,367,258 4,050,442
Amortisation of intangible assets  365,327  395,945

3,732,585 4,446,387

Notes to the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010
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2010 2009

11 Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Trade creditors  4,028,941  4,373,292
Payroll creditors 3,576,875 2,417,562
South African Revenue Service   468,378 1,585,404

8,074,194 8,376,258

The CGE considers that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximate their fair value.

12. Finance lease liability

31 March 2010
Minimum lease Future finance Present value

payment charges of minimum
lease payments

Amounts payable under finance
leases

Within one year - - -
Within two to five years - - -
After five years - - -

- - -
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months (current portion)

-

The average lease term is 60 months and the average effective borrowing rate is prime. Interest
rates fluctuate with the bank repo rate. All leases escalate between11% to 12% per annum. Obli
gations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's title to the leased asset. (Note 10)

31 March 2009 Present value
Minimum lease Future finance Present value

payment charges of minimum
lease payments

R'000 R'000 R'000

Amounts payable under finance
leases

Within one year 298,300 11,568 286,733
Within two to five years  -
After five years  -  -  -

298,300 11,568  286,733
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months (current portion)  (286,733)

-
The average lease term is 60 months and the average effective borrowing rate is prime. Interest
rates fluctuate with the bank repo rate. All leases escalate between11% to 12% per annum. Obli
gations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's title to the leased asset. (Note 10)

Notes to the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010
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2010 2009
13 Provisions

Annual bonus 391,597  361,613
391,597 361,613

The 'Provisions' balance includes bonus provisions which relate to the CGE's estimated liabilities
arising as a result of services rendered by employees.

Annual bonus Annual bonus
Balance at 1 April 2009 361,613 308,832
Contributions to provision
Expenditure incurred  29,984  52,781
Balance at 31 March 2010 391,597 361,613

2010 2009
14 Net cash flows from operating activities

Surplus/(deficit) for the year (2,510,104) (10,699,069)
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation  3,732,585   4,446,387
(Gain)/loss on sale of assets    185,203       92,862
Contribution to provisions - current     29,985    1,588,507
Finance costs     19,373     329,475
Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment loss)    695,215       90,170
Other income     (4,936)        -
Interest earned     (9,989)      (89,267)
Operating surplus before working capital changes:   2,137,275  (4,240,974)

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
from exchange in transactions  (186,898)   53,003
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
from exchange of transactions  (302,120)  2,421,304
Cash generated by/(utilised in) operations 1,648,314 (1,766,628)

15 Revaluation reserves

During the 2007 financial year the commission identified property, plant and equipment, with a
deemed value of R 4 049 454 .00 that did not appear in the fixed asset register and general ledger.
The assets were recognised in 2007 by increasing property, plant and equipment by R 4 049 454.00
and creating a revaluation reserve of R 4 049 454. The creation of the reserve was incorrect as the
adjustment
of R 4 049 454 was required to be recognised against accumulated surplus/(deficit).
The 2007 and 2008 annual financial statements disclosed that the accounting policy for property,
plant and equipment was the revaluation model. This statement in retrospective financial statement
was incorrect.
Although the accounting policy disclosed the revaluation model as the adopted policy, the
revaluation model was not applied. Instead the cost model was continued to be applied.
During the current financial year, the fixed asset register was recompiled and the reconciliation
between the fixed asset register and the general ledger did not require significant adjustment
as the significant adjustments were already made in 2007.

Notes to the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010
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16 Prior period errors - Adjustments

The following prior period errors have been identified and the specific effect on financial statements
accordingly disclosed. These errors have been corrected and comparatives restated accordingly.
Effect on 2009 financial statements are as follows:

These prior period errors have no tax effect as the CGE is exempt in terms of the Income Tax Act.

16.1 Understatement of accruals

Being the correction of invoices not being accrued for. The effect of the correction of the error on the
results for 2009 is as follows:

ncrease in accruals
Increase Telephone and fax  100,844
Increase Consulting Fees 527,117
Increase Legal Fees  405,960
Increase Security    27,856
Increase Printing Stationery   4,596
Increase Marketing expense 157,857
Increase Courier delivery services  43,247
Operating lease accrual  270,545
Decrease in surplus/(deficit) for the year (1,538,022)

16.2 Payroll control

During 2009 the commission for Conciliation, Mediation and Arbitration (CCMA) ordered the
Commission to reinstate three employees and to pay arrear salary equivalent for two months.
The judgement was signed on 25 March 2009, and it was therefore a valid amount owing at
31 March 2009. No amount, however, was accrued for. This error has been corrected
retrospectively and the comparative figures have been appropriately restated. The effect of
the correction of the error on the results for 2009 is as follows:

Increase in trade and other payables  159,164
Increase in employee cost  159,164
Decrease in surplus (deficit )for the year (159,164)

South African Revenue Services
Being the correction of errors and omission noted by auditors during the audit of PAYE, SDL,
and UIF. These errors has been corrected retrospectively and the comparative figures have
been appropriately restated. The effect of the correction of the error on the results for 2009 is
as follows:

Increase in trade and other payables  377,896
Increase in interest and penalties  377,896
Decrease in surplus (deficit )for the year (377,896)

16.3 Accounting for finance leases

Finance leases on computer and other equipment were incorrectly accounted for as
operating leases in prior periods. Correction of the lease classifications resulted in the
following:

Increase in finance cost - Finance lease cost     33,870
Increase in depreciation and amortisation expense - Finance leased assets   349,680
Increase in Property, Plant and Equipment - Finance leased assets 1,971,315
Increase in current finance lease liability   286,733
Increase in non-current finance lease liability 1,971,315
Decrease in accumulated surplus/(deficit) 1,234,108

Notes to the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010
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16.4 Fixed assets

In previous years auditors were unable to satisfy themselves as to the existence,
completeness, valuation and rights of property, plant and equipment as well as
intangible assets of the CGE. As a part of turn-around strategy, management took
a decision to recompile a new fixed assets register. Consultants (fixed assets
specialists) were appointed in order to assist CGE with assets verification and
valuation. The new fixed assets register was recompiled, however, there were
differences between the new fixed assets register and the General ledger. This
error has been corrected retrospectively and comparative figures have been
appropriately restated to align the fixed assets register and the General ledger.
The effect of the correction of the error on the results for 2010 is as follows:

Increase in property, plant and equipment   190,667
Increase in accumulated depreciation (261,399)
Decrease in net assets  (70,732)

Adjusted against accumulated surplus/(deficit) at the beginning of 2008/9 (70,732)

16.5 Estimated useful life

The depreciation methods and the useful lives were not reviewed at each reporting
date in prior years as required by GRAP 17/ IAS 16. While performing the assets
verification and valuation, the facts and circumstances existed that indicated that
the useful life should have been revised in prior years. As required by the standard
(GRAP 8), this error has been corrected retrospectively and the comparative figures
have been appropriately restated. The effect of the correction of the error on the

Decrease in accumulated depreciation (2,176,395)
Increase in net assets  2,176,395

Adjusted against accumulated surplus/(deficit) at the beginning of 2008/9 2,176,395

16.6 Trade and other receivable

The error relates to the amount (rent) paid by CGE on behalf of Department of
Public Work. This amount was omitted in the accounting records for 2009. This
error has been corrected retrospectively and the comparative figures have been
appropriately restated. The effect of the correction of the error on the results for
2010 is as follows:

Increase in trade and other receivables  236,497
Increase in other income 236,497
Increase in surplus/(deficit)  236,497

Notes to the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010
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16.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Being the cheque omitted in bank reconciliation in the Limpopo province's bank
account. This error has been corrected retrospectively and the comparative figures
have been appropriately restated. The effect of the correction of the error on the
results for 2009 is as follows:

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (5,525)
Increase in operating expenses  5,525
Decrease in surplus (deficit )for the year (5,525)

16.8 Provision for leave

Prior years provision for leave was materially misstated, due to inadequate leave
administration systems. The effect of the correction of the error on the results for
2009 is as follows:

Decrease in provision for prior years 1,035,636
Increase in opening accumulated surplus/deficit 1,035,636

Increase in employee cost  2,575,234
(Decrease) in accumulated surplus/(deficit) (2,575,234)

** Items effecting the accumulated surplus/(deficit) as at 1 April 2008:
16.3 Accounting for finance leases : Prior years depreciation and interest (1,516,576)
16.3 Correcting operating leases: Reversal of prior operating lease expense   2,750,688
16.4 Fixed assets  2,106,297
16.8 Correcting provision reversals  1,035,636

Reversal of incorrect accrual  1,000,000
Amount disclosed in the statement of changes in net assets 5,376,044

17 Related parties

The CGE is a schedule 1 constitutional institution in terms of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of
1999 as amended). Although the CGE is an independent institution, created under chapter of the
Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, the CGE has a significant number of related parties being
entities that fall within the national sphere of government .

Unless specifically disclosed, these transactions are concluded on an arm's length basis. There are no
restrictions in the CGE's capacity to transact with any entity.

17.1 Transactions with related entities
The following is a summary of transactions with related parties during the year and
balances due at year-end:

Services rendered Services received
2010 2009  2010 2009

Department of Public Works 236,497 236,497

Total 236,497 236,497 - -

Notes to the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010
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17.3 Fees paid to commissioners and executive management remuneration:

2010 2009

Salaries Allowances Total Total

Commisioners

T. Maitse 643,478 11,021 654,499 426,104

BG Khumalo 125,400 2,409 127,809 323,232

NP Gasa 253,276 3,785 257,061 535,572

M Shozi 695,372 73,446 768,818 488,033

R Shabodien 382,020 7,168 389,188 323,232

J Hicks 594,380 67,411 661,791 508,376

N Meruti 384,428 6,927 391,355 254,515

A Keet 481,246 5,109 486,355 408,140

N Loyilane 704,285 11,280 715,565 537,162

Y Abrahams 632,283 19,694 651,976 455,956

NB Khutsaone 400,338 7,168 407,506 319,800

Senior Management

MCC Majake 1,418,273 181,433 1,599,706 775,681

Keketso Maema 639,359 103,964 743,323 477,995

Moshabi Putu 346,440 50,413 396,853

Venet Napo 494,555 167,728 662,283 537,511

Joan De Klerk 479,749 151,341 631,090 432,348

Victor Mavhidula 509,028 175,945 684,974 442,314

Tasneem Du Pont 565,210 97,364 662,574 544,263

N Mapheelle - - 438,640

Total 9,749,121 1,143,606 10,892,727 8,228,874

17.4 The following is a list of Commissioners for the years ended 31 March 2009 and 2010

2010 2009

T. Maitse T. Maitse

BG Khumalo ( Resigned on 15th July 2009) BG Khumalo

NP Gasa ( Resigned as Commissioner and Chairperson on 3 Aug'09) NP Gasa

M Shozi M Shozi

R Shabodien R Shabodien

J Hicks J Hicks

N Meruti N Meruti

A Keet A Keet

N Loyilane N Loyilane

Y Abrahams Y Abrahams

NB Khutsaone NB Khutsaone

Notes to the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010
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18 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure - Full particulars are contained in Annexure B

The Commission does not have supply chain management unit as required by PFMA Act and Treasury
Regulations, as a results Irregular expenditure amounting to R4,700,784.94 was incurred. This amount
represent an amount paid to suppliers in contravention with the SCM policy.

Legal Expenses
The following costs were incurred in litigation and disciplinary processes against employees and former
employees primary on disputes emanating from the 2007/08 financial year and resultant protracted
resolution processes.

Amount

Leppan Beech legal fees and litigation for and against staff members 553,724.32
Crystal Cambanis CCMA matter Ms Majake 230,986.00
Legal costs for disciplinary action against Ms Majake 463,659.00

Note 20 1,248,369
19 Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure

Amasondo Fleet Management - Interest paid on late payment   3,046
SARS interest and penalties 300,937
SASFIN - Interest paid on late payment  7,838
SA Post Office - interest/penalty paid for late renewal    80

311,901

20 Reconciliation of Irregular Expenditure

Unless formally condoned by the relevant Treasury, upon application by an entity, the past irregular
expenditure is fully disclosable in all future reporting periods

2010     2009

Opening balance   8,891,563      -

Add: Irregular expenditure current year  5,949,154    8,891,563

Total 14,840,718  8,891,563

Less amounts condoned  0 0

Total Irregular expenditure awaiting condonement 14,840,718   8,891,563

Incident
Procurement process not followed by the entity (Annexure B) 4,700,785
Disciplenary steps taken
No disciplenary action taken as yet
Incident
Unforeseen legal expenses incurred (Note 18)   1,248,369 8,891,563
Irregular expenditure prior period 8,891,563
Disciplenary steps taken
No disciplenary action taken as yet

Expenditure awaiting condonement 14,840,718 8,891,563

Notes to the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010
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21 World Cup Expenditure
2010 2009

Purchase of other world cup apparel

Bafana Bafana jerseys 40,000 -

The Bafana Bafana jerseys were given to employees in December 2009, to wear to work on Fridays
to show our support for Bafana Bafana and to contribute to teambuilding and staff morale. No other
expenses were incurred for the world cup.

2010

22

Reconciliation of the budget with the surplus/deficit in the statement

of financial performance

Net deficit per the statement of financial performance (2,510,104)

Adjusted for :

Interest paid 1 19,373

Fruitless and wasteful  -

Depreciation and amortisation  3,732,585

(Gain)/loss on sale of assets   185,203

Contribution to provisions - current    29,985

Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment loss)   695,215

Under expenditure under capital expenditure- repriorisation as per MTEC (1,061,114)

Administrative expenses   354,655

Staff cost  390,282

Other operating expenses (2,067,367)

Finance cost  231,344

Approved budget   -

Notes to the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010
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23. Risk Management

Liquidity risk

The Commission’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The Commission
manages the liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and the cash flows arising from allocations
by National Treasury.

Interest rate risk

The Commission’s exposure to the interest rate is limited, as the Commission has no significant interest bearing liabili -
ties.

Liquidity risk

The financial liabilities maturity analysis of the Commission, for the reporting period shows contractual cash outflows on
an undiscounted basis as below

Financial Current Due in less Due in one Due to two Due in three Due after five
Instrumentin interest rate than a year to two years to three years  to four years years
Trade and 0% 4,028,940 - -  -  -
other payables
Finance leases - - - -  -  -

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade receivables. The Commission only deposits
cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any other counter party.

Currency risk

Foreign exchange rate risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net invest
 -
ments in foreign operations. The Commission is not exposed to any material foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures. The Commission does not hedge foreign exchange fluctuations.

Price Risk

The Commission is not exposed to equity securities price risk because there are no investments held by the Commission
and classified as either for sale or at fair value through surplus or deficit.

24. Going Concern

The Commission incurred an operating deficit of R2, 510, 103 (2009: R10, 699, 069) during the year ended 31 March 2010
and as of date, the Commission’s current liabilities exceeded its total assets by R2, 030, 735. Notwithstanding theses mat
 -
of South Africa.

25. Events after the reporting date

There were no reportable subsequent events after balance sheet date

26. Contingencies

Axolute Investments CC was contracted by the CGE to provide information technology services on a contract
effective during the 2007-2009 reporting period. The Commission has unilaterally cancelled the contract for reasons
of improper procurement procedures. The Service provider has instituted litigation proceedings against the
Commission for claims amounting to R814, 192.56, representing fees for the remainder of the contract. No provision has
been made
in the Annual Financial Statements as management believes that there are good prospects of defending the case.
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2010

Annexure B - particulars to note 17 of the annual financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2010

Service Provider Type of goods or services Frequency of purchase Incident Amount

provided

Nashua Mobile Telecommunication Monthly No Contract 148,668.84

International Courier Brokers Courier Services Monthly No Contract 142,694.30

Interim Consulting Consulting Once off No Contract 19,608.00

Chorus Call Telecommunication As and when tele- meeting No Contract

are needed  342,971.04

Red Alert Eastern Cape Security Monthly Contract has expired 4,712.05

Ubunye Cleaning Services Cleaning Services Monthly Contract has expired,

now on a month to

month basis 135,470.71

Makro for Head office groceries Groceries and Consumables as and when needed No Contract 7,248.52

Nada Travel CC Travel agency recurring Contract not signed

between the parties 2,754,102.16

Stone Moon print Stationery as and when needed Procurement procedures

not adequately follwed 88,179.00

Cosmic Linkt Development and recurring Procurement procedures

hosting of CGE website not adequately follwed 82,692.45

Sahara Systems Toners and Catridges as and when needed Procurement procedures

not adequately follwed 39,307.00

EPL Way for team building Team building-facilitation Once off Procurement procedures

not adequately follwed 53,580.00

Skynet Courier Services Monthly Procurement procedures

not adequately follwed 31,093.28

MTN Telecommunication Monthly Procurement procedures

not adequately follwed 267,716.19

CSAP service provider in leu of MOU

3 chapter 9 282,333.00

Corporate card used by the former

Chairperson (travel)    219,627.00

Sthem's and Sabe's Transport as and when needed Procurement procedures

not adequately follwed 80,781.40

Total related expenditure 4,700,784.94

Notes to the annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010
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ANNEXURE

Glossary of Acronyms and Abbreviations

AIDS Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome
ANCP Acting National Coordinator of Provinces
ANCRA Association for Community and Rural Advancement
AGDI African Gender and Development Index
AGSA Auditor-General of South Africa
ASA Advertising Standards Authority of South Africa
AU African Union
CBO Community-Based Organisation
CEE Commission for Employment Equity
CEO Chief Executive Officer
CEDAW The Convention on the Elimination of All forms of Discrimination Against Women
CFO Chief Financial Officer
CGE Commission for Gender Equality
COO Chief Operations Officer
CLR Cultural and Linguistic Rights
CSO Civil Society Organisation
CSW United National Commission on the Status of Women
CWG CEDAW Working Group
DWAFD&GG Department of Water and Forestry and Good Governance
DAF Department of Agriculture and Forestry
DOJCD Department of Justice and Constitutional Development
DOL Department of Labour
DLRN Distance Learning Resource Network
DVA Domestic Violence Act of 1998
EE Employment Equity
FBO Faith-Based Organisation
FGM Female Genital Mutilation
GBV Gender-Based Violence
GCIS Government Communication and Information System
HIV Human Immunodeficiency Virus
HOD Head of Department
ICASA Independent Communications Authority of South Africa
IEC Electoral Commission of South Africa
ISBN International Standard Book Number
IT Information Technology
KZN Kwa-Zulu Natal
LGBTI Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgendered and Inter-sexed
LOC Local Organising Committee (World Cup 2010)
MANCO  Management Committee
MDDA Media and Diversity Development Agency
MDG Millennium Development Goals
MMA Media Monitoring Africa
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MOU Memorandum of Understanding
NA National Assembly
NCOP National Council of Province
NERSA National Energy Regulator of South Africa
NGM National Gender Machinery
NGO Non-Governmental Organisation
NPA National Prosecuting Authority
OSW Office on the Status of Women
OVC Orphaned and Vulnerable Children
PEI Public Education and Information Programme
PEPUDA Promotion of Equality and Prevention of Unfair Discrimination Act
PEU Professional Education Union
PGM Provincial Gender Machinery
PLWHA People Living with HIV and AIDS
POWA People Opposing Women Abuse
PPR&R Procedures, Policies Rules and Regulations
PUPA Passion Unlimited Peers in Action
PWMSA Progressive Women’s Movement of South Africa
SA South Africa
SABC South African Broadcasting Corporation
SACC South African Council of Churches
SADC Southern African Development Community
SALGA South African Local Government Association
Sawid South African Women in Dialogue
SCA Supreme Courts of Appeal
SCOPA Select Committee on Public Accounts
SP Strategic Planning
STI Sexually Transmitted Infections
UN United Nations
UNFPA United Nations Population Fund
UNHCR United Nations High Commission for Refugees
WARD Women in Agricultural and Rural Development
WCWNVAW Western Cape Women’s Network on Violence Against Women
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